

## JOURNAL OF THE HOUSE

## Sixty-third Legislative Assembly

\* \* \* \* \*

Bismarck, April 19, 2013

The House convened at 8:02 a.m., with Speaker Devlin presiding.

The prayer was offered by Representative M. Nelson.

The roll was called and all members were present except Representatives Belter, Boschee, and Kretschmar.

A quorum was declared by the Speaker.

**MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)**

**MR. SPEAKER:** The Senate has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: HB 1126, HB 1133, HB 1227.

**MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)**

**MR. SPEAKER:** The Senate has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: SB 2131, SB 2353.

**APPOINTMENT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE**

**REP. VIGESAA MOVED** that the Speaker appoint a committee of three to act with a like committee from the Senate as a Conference Committee on Engrossed SB 2001 and Engrossed SB 2014, which motion prevailed.

**THE SPEAKER APPOINTED** as a Conference Committee on:

**Engrossed SB 2001:** Reps. Thoreson, Brandenburg, Guggisberg

**Engrossed SB 2014:** Reps. Thoreson, Hawken, Glassheim

**ANNOUNCEMENT**

**SPEAKER DEVLIN ANNOUNCED** that Rep. Froseth will replace Rep. Belter on the Conference Committee on HB 1198.

**ANNOUNCEMENT**

**SPEAKER DEVLIN ANNOUNCED** that Rep. Headland will replace Rep. Belter on the Conference Committee on HB 1234.

**CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT**

**REP. DROVDAL MOVED** that the conference committee report on Engrossed HB 1134 as printed on HJ pages 1690-1691 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed HB 1134, as amended, was placed on the Eleventh order of business.

**SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL**

**HB 1134:** A BILL for an Act to create and enact sections 57-51-02.6 and 57-51.1-02.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to oil and gas gross production tax exemption for natural gas and an oil extraction tax exemption for liquids produced from natural gas extracted to encourage use of gas that might otherwise be flared; to amend and reenact sections 38-08-06.4 and 57-39.2-04.5 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to flaring restrictions for natural gas and sales tax exemption for property used to process natural gas to encourage use of gas that might otherwise be flared; and to provide an effective date.

**ROLL CALL**

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, the roll was called and there were 84 YEAS, 7 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 3 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Amerman; Anderson; Beadle; Becker; Bellew; Boe; Boehning; Brabandt;

Brandenburg; Carlson; Damschen; Delmore; Delzer; Dockter; Dosch; Drovdal; Fehr; Frantsvog; Froseth; Grande; Haak; Hanson; Hatlestad; Hawken; Headland; Heilman; Heller; Hofstad; Holman; Hunskor; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Karls; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsh, J.; Kempenich; Kiefert; Klein; Klemin; Koppelman, K.; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kreun; Laning; Larson; Looyesen; Louser; Maragos; Martinson; Meier; Mock; Monson; Mooney; Nathe; Nelson, J.; Nelson, M.; Oversen; Owens; Paur; Pollert; Porter; Rohr; Ruby; Rust; Sanford; Schatz; Schmidt; Silbernagel; Skarphol; Steiner; Streyle; Strinden; Sukut; Thoreson; Toman; Trottier; Vigasaa; Wall; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Zaiser; Speaker Devlin

**NAYS:** Glassheim; Gruchalla; Guggisberg; Hogan; Kelsh, S.; Muscha; Onstad

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Belter; Boschee; Koppelman, B.

Reengrossed HB 1134 passed.

\*\*\*\*\*

#### **CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT**

**REP. KEISER MOVED** that the conference committee report on Engrossed HB 1171 as printed on HJ pages 1691-1693 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed HB 1171, as amended, was placed on the Eleventh order of business.

#### **SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL**

**HB 1171:** A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new chapter to title 26.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to unclaimed life insurance benefits; and to amend and reenact section 47-30.1-07 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the state's unclaimed property act.

#### **ROLL CALL**

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, the roll was called and there were 92 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Amerman; Anderson; Beadle; Becker; Bellew; Boe; Boehning; Brabandt; Brandenburg; Carlson; Damschen; Delmore; Delzer; Dockter; Dosch; Drovdal; Fehr; Frantsvog; Froseth; Glassheim; Grande; Gruchalla; Guggisberg; Haak; Hanson; Hatlestad; Hawken; Headland; Heilman; Heller; Hofstad; Hogan; Holman; Hunskor; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Karls; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsh, J.; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kiefert; Klein; Klemin; Koppelman, B.; Koppelman, K.; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kreun; Laning; Larson; Looyesen; Louser; Maragos; Martinson; Meier; Mock; Monson; Mooney; Muscha; Nathe; Nelson, J.; Nelson, M.; Onstad; Oversen; Owens; Paur; Pollert; Porter; Rohr; Ruby; Rust; Sanford; Schatz; Schmidt; Silbernagel; Skarphol; Steiner; Streyle; Strinden; Sukut; Thoreson; Toman; Trottier; Vigasaa; Wall; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Zaiser; Speaker Devlin

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Belter; Boschee

Reengrossed HB 1171 passed.

\*\*\*\*\*

#### **CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT**

**REP. BOEHNING MOVED** that the conference committee report on Engrossed SB 2115 as printed on HJ page 1693 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed SB 2115, as amended, was placed on the Fourteenth order of business.

#### **SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL**

**SB 2115:** A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 44-04-18.4 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to exemption of technical, financial, or marketing records.

#### **ROLL CALL**

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, the roll was called and there were 92 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Amerman; Anderson; Beadle; Becker; Bellew; Boe; Boehning; Brabandt; Brandenburg; Carlson; Damschen; Delmore; Delzer; Dockter; Dosch; Drovdal; Fehr; Frantsvog; Froseth; Glassheim; Grande; Gruchalla; Guggisberg; Haak; Hanson; Hatlestad; Hawken; Headland; Heilman; Heller; Hofstad; Hogan; Holman; Hunskor; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Karls; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsh, J.; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kiefert; Klein; Klemmin; Koppelman, B.; Koppelman, K.; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kreun; Laning; Larson; Looyesen; Louser; Maragos; Martinson; Meier; Mock; Monson; Mooney; Muscha; Nathe; Nelson, J.; Nelson, M.; Onstad; Oversen; Owens; Paur; Pollert; Porter; Rohr; Ruby; Rust; Sanford; Schatz; Schmidt; Silbernagel; Skarphol; Steiner; Streyle; Strinden; Sukut; Thoreson; Toman; Trottier; Vigesaa; Wall; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Zaiser; Speaker Devlin

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Belter; Boschee

Engrossed SB 2115, as amended, passed.

\*\*\*\*\*

#### CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

**REP. RUBY MOVED** that the conference committee report on SB 2144 as printed on HJ pages 1693-1694 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

SB 2144, as amended, was placed on the Fourteenth order of business.

#### SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL

**SB 2144:** A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 10-31 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to ownership of professional organizations; and to amend and reenact sections 10-31-01, 10-31-02, 10-31-02.1, 10-31-04, and 10-31-13 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to nonprofessional ownership of professional organizations.

#### ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, the roll was called and there were 87 YEAS, 5 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Amerman; Anderson; Beadle; Becker; Bellew; Boe; Boehning; Brabandt; Brandenburg; Carlson; Damschen; Delmore; Dockter; Dosch; Drovdal; Fehr; Frantsvog; Froseth; Glassheim; Grande; Gruchalla; Guggisberg; Haak; Hanson; Hatlestad; Hawken; Headland; Heilman; Heller; Hofstad; Hogan; Holman; Hunskor; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Karls; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kiefert; Klein; Klemmin; Koppelman, B.; Koppelman, K.; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kreun; Laning; Larson; Looyesen; Louser; Maragos; Martinson; Meier; Mock; Monson; Mooney; Muscha; Nathe; Nelson, J.; Nelson, M.; Onstad; Oversen; Owens; Paur; Pollert; Porter; Rohr; Ruby; Sanford; Schatz; Schmidt; Silbernagel; Steiner; Streyle; Strinden; Sukut; Thoreson; Toman; Trottier; Vigesaa; Wall; Weisz; Williams; Zaiser; Speaker Devlin

**NAYS:** Delzer; Kelsh, J.; Rust; Skarphol; Wieland

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Belter; Boschee

SB 2144, as amended, passed.

\*\*\*\*\*

#### CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

**REP. KEISER MOVED** that the conference committee report on SB 2152 as printed on HJ page 1694 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

SB 2152, as amended, was placed on the Fourteenth order of business.

#### SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL

**SB 2152:** A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subsection to section 10-31-13 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to regulation of professional organizations; and to amend and reenact section 10-31-06 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating

to ownership of professional organizations.

#### ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, the roll was called and there were 89 YEAS, 3 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Amerman; Anderson; Beadle; Becker; Bellew; Boe; Boehning; Brabandt; Brandenburg; Carlson; Damschen; Delmore; Dockter; Dosch; Drovdal; Fehr; Frantsvog; Froseth; Glassheim; Grande; Gruchalla; Guggisberg; Haak; Hanson; Hatlestad; Hawken; Headland; Heilman; Heller; Hofstad; Hogan; Holman; Hunskor; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Karls; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsh, J.; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kiefert; Klein; Klemin; Koppelman, B.; Koppelman, K.; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kreun; Laning; Larson; Looyesen; Louser; Maragos; Martinson; Meier; Mock; Monson; Mooney; Muscha; Nathe; Nelson, J.; Nelson, M.; Onstad; Oversen; Owens; Paur; Pollert; Porter; Rohr; Ruby; Sanford; Schatz; Schmidt; Silbernagel; Steiner; Streyle; Strinden; Sukut; Thoreson; Toman; Trottier; Vigasaa; Wall; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Zaiser; Speaker Devlin

**NAYS:** Delzer; Rust; Skarphol

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Belter; Boschee

SB 2152, as amended, passed.

\*\*\*\*\*

#### CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

**REP. KLEMIN MOVED** that the conference committee report on Engrossed SB 2175 as printed on HJ page 1694 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

#### CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

**REP. PAUR MOVED** that the conference committee report on Engrossed SB 2225 as printed on HJ page 1695 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed SB 2225, as amended, was placed on the Fourteenth order of business.

#### SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL

**SB 2225:** A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 14-03-09 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the authority to solemnize marriages.

#### ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, the roll was called and there were 88 YEAS, 4 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Amerman; Anderson; Beadle; Becker; Bellew; Boe; Boehning; Brabandt; Brandenburg; Carlson; Damschen; Delmore; Delzer; Dockter; Dosch; Drovdal; Fehr; Frantsvog; Froseth; Glassheim; Gruchalla; Guggisberg; Haak; Hanson; Hatlestad; Hawken; Headland; Heilman; Heller; Hofstad; Hogan; Holman; Hunskor; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Karls; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsh, J.; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kiefert; Klein; Klemin; Koppelman, B.; Koppelman, K.; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kreun; Larson; Looyesen; Louser; Maragos; Martinson; Meier; Mock; Monson; Mooney; Muscha; Nathe; Nelson, J.; Nelson, M.; Onstad; Oversen; Owens; Paur; Pollert; Porter; Rohr; Ruby; Rust; Sanford; Schatz; Schmidt; Silbernagel; Steiner; Streyle; Strinden; Sukut; Thoreson; Toman; Vigasaa; Wall; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Zaiser; Speaker Devlin

**NAYS:** Grande; Laning; Skarphol; Trottier

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Belter; Boschee

Engrossed SB 2225, as amended, passed.

\*\*\*\*\*

**CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT**

**REP. KRETSCHMAR MOVED** that the conference committee report on Engrossed SB 2227 as printed on HJ page 1695 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

**CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT**

**REP. LOUSER MOVED** that the conference committee report on Engrossed SB 2299 as printed on HJ pages 1695-1698 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed SB 2299, as amended, was placed on the Fourteenth order of business.

**SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL**

**SB 2299:** A BILL for an Act to create and enact section 16.1-08.1-03.13 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to campaign contribution statements required of initiated petition sponsoring committees; to amend and reenact section 16.1-08.1-01, subsection 3 of section 16.1-08.1-02, subsection 2 of section 16.1-08.1-03, sections 16.1-08.1-03.1, 16.1-08.1-03.2, 16.1-08.1-03.3, 16.1-08.1-03.5, and 16.1-08.1-03.7, subsection 3 of section 16.1-08.1-03.8, subsection 2 of section 16.1-08.1-03.9, subsection 2 of section 16.1-08.1-03.10, subsection 2 of section 16.1-08.1-03.11, and sections 16.1-08.1-03.12, 16.1-08.1-04, 16.1-08.1-05, 16.1-08.1-06, 16.1-08.1-06.1, and 16.1-08.1-07 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to campaign finance; to provide a penalty; and to provide an effective date.

**ROLL CALL**

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, the roll was called and there were 92 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Amerman; Anderson; Beadle; Becker; Bellew; Boe; Boehning; Brabandt; Brandenburg; Carlson; Damschen; Delmore; Delzer; Dockter; Dosch; Drovdal; Fehr; Frantsvog; Froseth; Glassheim; Grande; Gruchalla; Guggisberg; Haak; Hanson; Hatlestad; Hawken; Headland; Heilman; Heller; Hofstad; Hogan; Holman; Hunskor; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Karls; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsh, J.; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kiefert; Klein; Klemin; Koppelman, B.; Koppelman, K.; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kreun; Laning; Larson; Looyesen; Louser; Maragos; Martinson; Meier; Mock; Monson; Mooney; Muscha; Nathe; Nelson, J.; Nelson, M.; Onstad; Oversen; Owens; Paur; Pollert; Porter; Rohr; Ruby; Rust; Sanford; Schatz; Schmidt; Silbernagel; Skarphol; Steiner; Streyle; Strinden; Sukut; Thoreson; Toman; Trottier; Vigasaa; Wall; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Zaiser; Speaker Devlin

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Belter; Boschee

Engrossed SB 2299, as amended, passed.

\*\*\*\*\*

**CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT**

**REP. OWENS MOVED** that the conference committee report on SB 2330 as printed on HJ page 1698 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

**CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT**

**REP. HELLER MOVED** that the conference committee report on SB 2361 as printed on HJ pages 1698-1699 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

SB 2361, as amended, was placed on the Fourteenth order of business.

**SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL**

**SB 2361:** A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 15-62.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to a student loan consolidation program at the Bank of North Dakota; and to provide for a report.

**ROLL CALL**

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, the roll was called and there were 91 YEAS, 1 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Amerman; Anderson; Beadle; Bellew; Boe; Boehning; Brabandt; Brandenburg; Carlson; Damschen; Delmore; Delzer; Dockter; Dosch; Drovdal; Fehr; Frantsvog; Froseth; Glassheim; Grande; Gruchalla; Guggisberg; Haak; Hanson; Hatlestad; Hawken; Headland; Heilman; Heller; Hofstad; Hogan; Holman; Hunskor; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Karls; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsh, J.; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kiefert; Klein; Klemm; Koppelman, B.; Koppelman, K.; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kreun; Laning; Larson; Looyesen; Louser; Maragos; Martinson; Meier; Mock; Monson; Mooney; Muscha; Nathe; Nelson, J.; Nelson, M.; Onstad; Oversen; Owens; Paur; Pollert; Porter; Rohr; Ruby; Rust; Sanford; Schatz; Schmidt; Silbernagel; Skarphol; Steiner; Streyle; Strinden; Sukut; Thoreson; Toman; Trottier; Vigesaa; Wall; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Zaiser; Speaker Devlin

**NAYS:** Becker

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Belter; Boschee

SB 2361, as amended, passed.

\*\*\*\*\*

**MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)**  
**MR. SPEAKER:** The Senate has passed, unchanged: HB 1102.

**MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)**  
**MR. SPEAKER:** The Senate has appointed as a conference committee to act with a like committee from the House on:

**HB 1012:** Sens. Kilzer; Erbele; Mathern

**HB 1020:** Sens. Grindberg; Holmberg; Robinson

**MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**  
**MR. PRESIDENT:** The House has appointed as a conference committee to act with a like committee from the Senate on:

**SB 2001:** Reps. Thoreson; Brandenburg; Guggisberg

**SB 2014:** Reps. Thoreson; Hawken; Glassheim

**MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**  
**MR. PRESIDENT:** The Speaker has appointed Rep. Froseth to replace Rep. Belter on the Conference Committee on HB 1198.

**MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**  
**MR. PRESIDENT:** The Speaker has appointed Rep. Headland to replace Rep. Belter on the Conference Committee on HB 1234.

**MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**  
**MR. PRESIDENT:** The House has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: HB 1134, HB 1171.

**MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**  
**MR. PRESIDENT:** The House has adopted the conference committee report on: SB 2175, SB 2227, SB 2330.

**MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**  
**MR. PRESIDENT:** The House has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: SB 2115, SB 2144, SB 2152, SB 2225, SB 2299, SB 2361.

**MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)**  
**MR. SPEAKER:** The Senate has adopted the conference committee report on: HB 1080, HB 1157, HB 1251.

**MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)**  
**MR. SPEAKER:** The Senate has adopted the conference committee report and

subsequently passed: HB 1139.

**MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)**  
**MR. SPEAKER:** The Senate has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: HB 1205, HB 1440.

**MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**  
**MR. PRESIDENT:** Your signature is respectfully requested on: HB 1126, HB 1133, HB 1227.

**MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)**  
**MR. SPEAKER:** Your signature is respectfully requested on: SB 2126, SB 2129, SB 2132, SB 2162, SB 2213.

**MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)**  
**MR. SPEAKER:** The President has signed: SB 2047, SB 2094, SB 2218, SB 2310, SB 2339, SB 2344.

**MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)**  
**MR. SPEAKER:** The President has signed: SB 2087, SB 2113, SB 2114, SB 2163, SB 2207, SB 2255, SB 2352.

**COMMUNICATION FROM GOVERNOR JACK DALRYMPLE**

This is to inform you that on April 18, 2013, I have signed the following: HB 1027, HB 1106, HB 1145, HB 1211, HB 1213, HB 1263, HB 1296, HB 1309, HB 1322, HB 1332, HB 1382, HB 1402, HB 1413, HB 1429, HB 1435, HB 1439, HB 1451, HB 1454, HB 1459, and HB 1464.

**ANNOUNCEMENT**

**SPEAKER DEVLIN ANNOUNCED** that the House will stand in recess until 12:30 p.m.

**THE HOUSE RECONVENED** pursuant to recess taken, with Speaker Devlin presiding.

**CORRECTION AND REVISION OF THE JOURNAL**

**MR. SPEAKER:** Your **Committee on Correction and Revision of the Journal (Rep. Kretschmar, Chairman)** has carefully examined the Journal of the Sixty-fifth, Sixty-sixth, and Sixty-seventh Days and recommends that it be corrected as follows and when so corrected, recommends that it be approved:

Page 1424, after line 2, insert:

**"SENATE AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED HOUSE BILL NO. 1306**

Page 1, line 15, replace "nine" with "six"

Page 1, line 15, after "four" insert "seven"

Page 1, line 15, remove the overstrike over "hundred" and insert immediately thereafter "fifty"

Page 1, line 24, replace "nine" with "six"

Page 1, line 24, after "four" insert "seven"

Page 1, line 24, remove the overstrike over "hundred" and insert immediately thereafter "fifty"

Page 2, line 5, replace "nine" with "six"

Page 2, line 5, after "four" insert "seven"

Page 2, line 5, remove the overstrike over "hundred" and insert immediately thereafter "fifty"

Page 2, line 16, remove "a.A disabled veteran or unremarried surviving spouse who would qualify for a credit"

Page 2, remove lines 17 through 31

Page 3, remove lines 1 through 11

Page 3, line 12, remove "5."

Page 3, line 17, remove the overstrike over "5."

Page 3, line 17, remove "6."

Page 3, line 19, remove the overstrike over "6."

Page 3, line 19, remove "7."

Page 3, line 24, remove the overstrike over "7."

Page 3, line 24, remove "8."

Page 4, line 1, remove the overstrike over "8."

Page 4, line 1, remove "9."

Page 4, line 7, remove the overstrike over "9."

Page 4, line 7, remove "10."

Page 4, line 11, remove the overstrike over "10."

Page 4, line 11, remove "11."

Page 4, line 15, remove the overstrike over "11."

Page 4, line 15, remove "12."

Page 4, line 22, after "2012" insert ", for ad valorem property taxes and for taxable years beginning after December 31, 2013, for mobile home taxes"

Renumber accordingly"

Page 1492, line 51, replace "Reengrossed" with "Engrossed"

Page 1557, line 5, replace "Marcellais" with "Nelson"

Page 1558, line 27, after the first comma insert "Fifth"

**REP. KRETSCHMAR MOVED** that the report be adopted, which motion prevailed.

#### **CONSIDERATION OF MESSAGE FROM THE SENATE**

**REP. VIGESAA MOVED** that the House do not concur in the Senate amendments to Reengrossed HB 1038 as printed on HJ pages 1684-1686 and that a conference committee be appointed to meet with a like committee from the Senate, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

#### **APPOINTMENT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE**

**THE SPEAKER APPOINTED** as a Conference Committee on Reengrossed HB 1038: Reps. Hofstad, Fehr, Wieland.

#### **APPOINTMENT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE**

**REP. VIGESAA MOVED** that the Speaker appoint a committee of three to act with a like committee from the Senate as a Conference Committee on SB 2226, which motion prevailed.

**THE SPEAKER APPOINTED** as a Conference Committee on:

**SB 2226:** Reps. Porter, Laning, Muscha

**REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE**

**HB 1138, as engrossed:** Your conference committee (Sens. Armstrong, Lyson, Grabinger and Reps. K. Koppelman, Boehning, Delmore) recommends that the **SENATE RECEDE** from the Senate amendments as printed on HJ pages 1224-1225 and place HB 1138 on the Seventh order.

Engrossed HB 1138 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

**CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT**

**REP. K. KOPPELMAN MOVED** that the conference committee report on Engrossed HB 1138 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

**REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE**

**HCR 3034, as engrossed:** Your conference committee (Sens. Hogue, Armstrong, Nelson and Reps. Maragos, Karls, Delmore) recommends that the **HOUSE ACCEDE** to the Senate amendments as printed on HJ page 1234 and place HCR 3034 on the Seventh order.

Engrossed HCR 3034 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

**CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT**

**REP. MARAGOS MOVED** that the conference committee report on Engrossed HCR 3034 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed HCR 3034, as amended, was placed on the Eleventh order of business.

**SECOND READING OF HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION**

**HCR 3034:** A concurrent resolution to amend and reenact sections 5, 6, and 7 of article III of the Constitution of North Dakota, relating to petition requirements for initiated measures; and to provide an effective date.

**ROLL CALL**

The question being on the final adoption of the amended resolution, which has been read. The roll was called and there were 78 YEAS, 14 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Amerman; Anderson; Beadle; Boe; Boehning; Brandenburg; Damschen; Delmore; Dockter; Dosch; Drovdal; Fehr; Frantsvog; Froseth; Glassheim; Gruchalla; Guggisberg; Haak; Hanson; Hatlestad; Hawken; Heilman; Heller; Hofstad; Hogan; Holman; Hunskor; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Karls; Kasper; Keiser; Kelsh, J.; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kiefert; Klein; Klemin; Koppelman, B.; Koppelman, K.; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kreun; Laning; Larson; Looyesen; Louser; Maragos; Martinson; Meier; Mock; Monson; Mooney; Muscha; Nathe; Nelson, M.; Onstad; Oversen; Owens; Paur; Pollert; Porter; Rust; Sanford; Schmidt; Silbernagel; Skarphol; Steiner; Streyle; Strinden; Sukut; Thoreson; Trottier; Wall; Wieland; Williams; Zaiser; Speaker Devlin

**NAYS:** Becker; Bellew; Brabandt; Carlson; Delzer; Grande; Headland; Nelson, J.; Rohr; Ruby; Schatz; Toman; Vigesaa; Weisz

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Belter; Boschee

Reengrossed HCR 3034 was declared adopted on a recorded roll call vote.

\*\*\*\*\*

**CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT**

**REP. LOOYSEN MOVED** that the conference committee report on Engrossed SB 2131 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

**REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE**

**SB 2353, as reengrossed:** Your conference committee (Sens. Sorvaag, Anderson, Grabinger and Reps. Hatlestad, Toman, J. Kelsh) recommends that the **HOUSE RECEDE** from the House amendments as printed on SJ pages 1156-1157, adopt amendments as follows, and place SB 2353 on the Seventh order:

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1066 and 1067 of the Senate Journal and pages 1156 and 1157 of the House Journal and that Reengrossed Senate Bill No. 2353 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 17, replace "**Statewide**" with "**North Dakota statewide**"

Page 1, line 17, replace "**board**" with "**executive committee**"

Page 1, line 18, replace "**board**" with "**executive committee**"

Page 2, line 5, after "k." insert "A representative of the North Dakota peace officers association:

l."

Page 2, line 6, replace "l." with "m."

Page 2, line 7, replace "**board**" with "**committee**"

Page 2, line 9, remove "The board shall provide for key components and provide for support of key"

Page 2, remove lines 10 through 12

Page 2, line 13, remove "4."

Page 2, line 13, replace "**board**" with "**committee**"

Page 2, line 13, replace "**manage**" with "**prepare recommendations regarding**"

Page 2, line 15, replace "2013-15 biennium" with "2013-14 interim"

Page 2, line 17, replace "study" with "consider studying"

Page 2, line 20, replace "board" with "statewide interoperability executive committee. The legislative management shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixty-fourth legislative assembly"

Page 2, replace lines 21 through 31 with:

**"SECTION 4. APPROPRIATION.** There is appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state treasury, not otherwise appropriated, the sum of \$25,000, or so much of the sum as may be necessary, to the department of emergency services for the purpose of paying the costs of the members of the statewide interoperability executive committee expenses, including travel expenses, in providing an inventory of technologies used for radio communications, and with the remainder to the department of homeland security to analyze information, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2013, and ending June 30, 2015."

ReNUMBER accordingly

Reengrossed SB 2353 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

#### **CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT**

**REP. HATLESTAD MOVED** that the conference committee report on Reengrossed SB 2353 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Reengrossed SB 2353, as amended, was placed on the Fourteenth order of business.

#### **SECOND READING OF SENATE BILL**

**SB 2353:** A BILL for an Act to create and enact two new sections to chapter 37-17.3 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to statewide integrated radio communication; to provide for a legislative management study; and to provide an appropriation.

**ROLL CALL**

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, the roll was called and there were 74 YEAS, 18 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Amerman; Anderson; Beadle; Boe; Boehning; Brandenburg; Carlson; Damschen; Delmore; Dockter; Drovdal; Fehr; Frantsvog; Froseth; Glassheim; Gruchalla; Guggisberg; Haak; Hanson; Hatlestad; Hawken; Heilman; Hofstad; Hogan; Holman; Hunskor; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Karls; Keiser; Kelsh, J.; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kiefert; Klein; Klemm; Koppelman, B.; Koppelman, K.; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kreun; Laning; Larson; Looyen; Louser; Maragos; Martinson; Mock; Monson; Mooney; Muscha; Nathe; Nelson, J.; Nelson, M.; Onstad; Oversen; Owens; Paur; Porter; Rohr; Rust; Sanford; Schmidt; Silbernagel; Strinden; Sukut; Toman; Trottier; Vigasaa; Wall; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Speaker Devlin

**NAYS:** Becker; Bellew; Brabant; Delzer; Dosch; Grande; Headland; Heller; Kasper; Meier; Pollert; Ruby; Schatz; Skarphol; Steiner; Streyle; Thoreson; Zaiser

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Belter; Boschee

Reengrossed SB 2353, as amended, passed.

\*\*\*\*\*

**REQUEST**

**REP. VIGESAA REQUESTED** that the House be on a Special Order of business, which request was granted.

**MOTION**

**REP. VIGESAA MOVED** that a committee of two be appointed to escort Miss North Dakota, Rosie Sauvageau, to the podium, which motion prevailed.

**THE SPEAKER APPOINTED** Reps. Hawken and Heilman to the escort committee.

**REMARKS OF ROSIE SAUVAGEAU, MISS NORTH DAKOTA 2012**

Good morning! I'm so excited to be here and tell you a bit about my year as Miss North Dakota, my personal story, and an in depth look at my tour around North Dakota.

I am a Fargo native but I was born in Bryan, Texas. I was adopted at 9 weeks old and have lived in the Fargo area ever since. I have a younger brother, two years younger than myself, who is my parent's biological child and a younger sister who was also adopted from Texas, although my sister and I are not biologically related. So, within my immediate family there is a lot of diversity, being that my parents and my brother are caucasian and myself and my sister are African-American. In addition to that, my parents had a daycare when I was growing up that, at one point, had 5 children from 5 different countries, practicing 3 different religions. Not only was my immediate family diverse, but my home life and the daycare as well. Because of this, I learned a lot about different cultures, religions, backgrounds and how unique our differences can be.

When I arrived at my first day of kindergarten I was confused. Coming from a home life that was very diverse I walked into my first kindergarten class and noticed I was the only person of color but I understood if I could find an easy connector with people, a way to create an initial bond, I could cross over any barriers that might be in place because of physical differences.

Music has always been a huge part of my life. My mom is a music lover and made me listen to classical music as a child. She wouldn't let me watch very much television unless it was a show with music in it. We fell into this daily routine of her pushing my highchair up to the piano in our house and turning on Sesame Street, hoping and wishing that I would be interested or inspired by the piano and take an interest in music. One day that seemed like any other, my mother did this regular routine; but this day was different from the others. I started to play along with the Sesame Street theme song. My mom knew two things at this point: 1- her plan had worked, and 2 - I had an interest and a talent in music. I was two years old when this happened and my journey in music continued from there. I have been

classically trained in piano, cello, organ, guitar, clarinet and accordion and actively stayed involved in choir, band, orchestra and theatre throughout high school in college.

When I was a senior in college a good friend of mine and former Miss North Dakota, Jacqueline Johnson, encouraged me to consider competing in the Miss North Dakota scholarship organization. I decided to compete and placed second runner-up the first year, first runner-up the second year, and this year was crowned Miss North Dakota in June. Since being crowned in June I've traveled over 10,000 miles and had the opportunity to speak and perform for over 25,000 people.

I've focused in on the topic of diversity. Diversity meaning simply a difference that we have - whether our skin is light or dark, whether we grew up on a farm or in the city, maybe we've lived in North Dakota our entire lives or maybe we've just moved here. Perhaps music is your connector, your common bond and your area of expertise, or maybe your area is art or sports, fishing or hunting. There are a lot of things we can find that make us unique and add to our diversity story, but these things are what make life interesting. Respecting these differences, keeping an open mind and trying to find a simple connector, an easy common bond, is a great way to start.

My easy connector is music. What is yours?

#### MOTION

**REP. VIGESAA MOVED** that the remarks of Rosie Sauvageau be printed in the Journal, which motion prevailed.

#### CONSIDERATION OF VETOED MEASURE

**HB 1156:** AN ACT to amend and reenact sections 11-09.1-03 and 11-09.1-04 and subsection 6 of section 11-09.1-04.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to county home rule.

#### ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the enrolled bill, over the Governor's veto, which has been read, the roll was called and there were 48 YEAS, 44 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Amerman; Anderson; Beadle; Boe; Delmore; Dockter; Fehr; Frantsvog; Froseth; Gruchalla; Guggisberg; Haak; Hanson; Hatlestad; Hawken; Heilman; Hogan; Holman; Hunskor; Johnson, N.; Keiser; Kelsh, J.; Kelsh, S.; Kiefert; Klemin; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kreun; Larson; Mock; Mooney; Muscha; Nelson, J.; Onstad; Oversen; Owens; Rust; Sanford; Schmidt; Silbernagel; Strinden; Sukut; Wall; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Zaiser; Speaker Devlin

**NAYS:** Becker; Bellew; Boehning; Brabandt; Brandenburg; Carlson; Damschen; Delzer; Dosch; Drovdal; Glassheim; Grande; Headland; Heller; Hofstad; Johnson, D.; Karls; Kasper; Kempenich; Klein; Koppelman, B.; Koppelman, K.; Laning; Looyen; Louser; Maragos; Martinson; Meier; Monson; Nathe; Nelson, M.; Paur; Pollert; Porter; Rohr; Ruby; Schatz; Skarphol; Steiner; Streyle; Thoreson; Toman; Trotter; Vigesaa

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Belter; Boschee

The House sustained the Governor's veto of HB 1156, as enrolled.

\*\*\*\*\*

#### MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)

**MR. PRESIDENT:** The House has sustained the Governor's veto on HB 1209. The vote was 61 YEAS, 31 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

#### CONSIDERATION OF VETOED MEASURE

**HB 1209:** AN ACT to amend and reenact section 50-24.5-10 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to compensation for top management personnel of basic care facilities.

**ROLL CALL**

The question being on the final passage of the enrolled bill, over the Governor's veto, which has been read, the roll was called and there were 61 YEAS, 31 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Amerman; Anderson; Beadle; Boe; Boehning; Damschen; Delmore; Dockter; Drovdal; Fehr; Frantsvog; Froseth; Glassheim; Gruchalla; Guggisberg; Haak; Hanson; Hatlestad; Hawken; Heilman; Heller; Hofstad; Hogan; Holman; Hunskor; Johnson, D.; Johnson, N.; Keiser; Kelsh, J.; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kiefert; Klemin; Kreidt; Kretschmar; Kreun; Maragos; Martinson; Mock; Monson; Mooney; Muscha; Nelson, J.; Nelson, M.; Onstad; Oversen; Owens; Rohr; Rust; Sanford; Schmidt; Skarphol; Steiner; Strinden; Sukut; Thoreson; Vigesaa; Wall; Wieland; Williams; Speaker Devlin

**NAYS:** Becker; Bellew; Brabandt; Brandenburg; Carlson; Delzer; Dosch; Grande; Headland; Karls; Kasper; Klein; Koppelman, B.; Koppelman, K.; Laning; Larson; Looyesen; Louser; Meier; Nathe; Paur; Pollert; Porter; Ruby; Schatz; Silbernagel; Streyle; Toman; Trottier; Weisz; Zaiser

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Belter; Boschee

The House sustained the Governor's veto of HB 1209, as enrolled.

\*\*\*\*\*

**MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**

**MR. PRESIDENT:** The House has sustained the Governor's veto on HB 1156. The vote was 48 YEAS, 44 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**

**MR. PRESIDENT:** The House does not concur in the Senate amendments to HB 1038, and the Speaker has appointed as a conference committee to act with a like committee from the Senate on:

**HB 1038:** Reps. Hofstad; Fehr; Wieland

**MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)**

**MR. SPEAKER:** The Senate has concurred in the House amendments and subsequently failed to pass: SB 2193.

**MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)**

**MR. SPEAKER:** The Senate does not concur in the House amendments to SB 2233 and SB 2243, and the President has appointed as a conference committee to act with a like committee from the House on:

**SB 2233:** Sens. Hogue; Burckhard; Triplett

**SB 2243:** Sens. Dever; J. Lee; Axness

**MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**

**MR. PRESIDENT:** The House has appointed as a conference committee to act with a like committee from the Senate on:

**SB 2226:** Reps. Porter; Laning; Muscha

**MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**

**MR. PRESIDENT:** The House has adopted the conference committee report on: HB 1138.

**MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**

**MR. PRESIDENT:** The House has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: HCR 3034.

**MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**

**MR. PRESIDENT:** The House has adopted the conference committee report on: SB 2131.

**MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**

**MR. PRESIDENT:** The House has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: SB 2353.

**MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)**

**MR. SPEAKER:** The Senate has adopted the conference committee report on: HB 1061, HB 1063, HB 1163, HB 1166, HB 1338, HCR 3016.

**MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)**

**MR. SPEAKER:** The Senate has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: SB 2072, SB 2244.

**MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)**

**MR. SPEAKER:** Your signature is respectfully requested on: SB 2115, SB 2144, SB 2152, SB 2175, SB 2225, SB 2227, SB 2299, SB 2330, SB 2361.

**MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)**

**MR. SPEAKER:** The President has signed: HB 1126, HB 1133, HB 1227.

**MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**

**MR. PRESIDENT:** The Speaker has signed: HB 1281, HCR 3017.

**MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**

**MR. PRESIDENT:** The Speaker has signed: SB 2126, SB 2129, SB 2132, SB 2162, SB 2213.

**ANNOUNCEMENT**

**SPEAKER DEVLIN ANNOUNCED** that the House will stand in recess until 4:30 p.m.

**THE HOUSE RECONVENED** pursuant to recess taken, with Speaker Devlin presiding.

**REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE**

**HB 1048, as engrossed:** Your conference committee (Sens. Flakoll, Campbell, Sinner and Reps. Ruby, Heller, Oversen) recommends that the **SENATE RECEDE** from the Senate amendments as printed on HJ page 1249, adopt amendments as follows, and place HB 1048 on the Seventh order:

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on page 1249 of the House Journal and page 1099 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1048 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 1, remove "and subsection 2 of section"

Page 1, line 2, remove "40-05-06"

Page 2, after line 3, insert:

"i. A violation for the failure to obey a red traffic-control signal, stop sign, or yield sign under section 39-10-05 or 39-10-24, a fee of forty dollars."

Page 2, line 16, replace "per" with "an"

Page 3, line 17, overstrike "sixty-five" and insert immediately thereafter "fifty-five"

Page 3, line 17, overstrike "104.61" and insert immediately thereafter "88.51"

Page 3, line 18, after "hour" insert "but lower than than seventy miles [112.65 kilometers] an hour"

Page 3, line 19, overstrike "five" and insert immediately thereafter "four"

Page 3, line 19, overstrike "per" and insert immediately thereafter "an"

Page 3, line 19, after the period insert "On a highway on which the speed limit is posted at seventy miles [112.65 kilometers] an hour or higher, for a violation of section 39-09-02, or equivalent ordinance, a fee of five dollars for each mile an hour over the limit."

Page 4, remove lines 4 through 18

Renumber accordingly

Engrossed HB 1048 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

#### CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

**REP. RUBY MOVED** that the conference committee report on Engrossed HB 1048 as printed on HJ page 1249 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed HB 1048, as amended, was placed on the Eleventh order of business.

#### SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

**HB 1048:** A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 39-06.1-06 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to fees for speeding.

#### ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, the roll was called and there were 44 YEAS, 39 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 11 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Anderson; Beadle; Damschen; Drovdal; Frantsvog; Glassheim; Guggisberg; Haak; Hatlestad; Hawken; Heilman; Hogan; Holman; Hunskor; Karls; Keiser; Kelsh, J.; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Klein; Klemin; Koppelman, K.; Kreun; Laning; Larson; Martinson; Mock; Mooney; Muscha; Nelson, J.; Nelson, M.; Onstad; Oversen; Owens; Paur; Pollert; Ruby; Rust; Sanford; Strinden; Trottier; Wall; Williams; Zaiser

**NAYS:** Becker; Bellew; Boe; Boehning; Brabandt; Brandenburg; Carlson; Delzer; Dockter; Dosch; Fehr; Froseth; Grande; Hanson; Headland; Heller; Hofstad; Johnson, D.; Kiefert; Kreidt; Looyesen; Louser; Meier; Monson; Nathe; Porter; Rohr; Schatz; Schmidt; Silbernagel; Skarphol; Steiner; Streyle; Thoreson; Toman; Vigesaa; Weisz; Wieland; Speaker Devlin

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Amerman; Belter; Boschee; Delmore; Gruchalla; Johnson, N.; Kasper; Koppelman, B.; Kretschmar; Maragos; Sukut

Reengrossed HB 1048 failed.

\*\*\*\*\*

#### REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

**HB 1272, as engrossed:** Your conference committee (Sens. Luick, Schaible, Marcellais and Reps. Meier, Rohr, Mock) recommends that the **SENATE RECEDE** from the Senate amendments as printed on HJ pages 1149-1150, adopt amendments as follows, and place HB 1272 on the Seventh order:

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1149 and 1150 of the House Journal and pages 830 and 831 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1272 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 23, after "A" insert "benefited employee of the North Dakota university system;

f. The"

Page 1, line 23, overstrike "or dependent"

Page 2, line 6, replace "An" with "A benefited"

Page 2, line 6, overstrike "any institution of higher education in this state"

Page 2, line 7, after "any" insert "the North Dakota university system"

Page 2, line 9, overstrike "f." and insert immediately thereafter "g."

Page 2, line 9, remove the overstrike over "A"

Page 2, line 9, after "person" insert "dependent of:

- (1) A full-time active duty member of the armed forces;
- (2) A member of the North Dakota national guard;
- (3) A member of the armed forces reserve component stationed in this state;
- (4) A veteran, as defined in section 37-01-40, provided the veteran is eligible to transfer entitlement under the Post 9-11 Veterans Educational Assistance Act of 2008 [38 U.S.C. 3301]; or
- (5) A benefited employee of the North Dakota university system;

h."

Page 2, line 11, overstrike "g." and insert immediately thereafter "i."

Renumber accordingly

Engrossed HB 1272 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

#### **CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT**

**REP. MEIER MOVED** that the conference committee report on Engrossed HB 1272 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed HB 1272, as amended, was placed on the Eleventh order of business.

#### **SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL**

**HB 1272:** A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact section 15-10-19.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to resident tuition for spouses and dependents of veterans.

#### **ROLL CALL**

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, the roll was called and there were 83 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 11 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Anderson; Beadle; Becker; Bellew; Boe; Boehning; Brabandt; Brandenburg; Carlson; Damschen; Delzer; Dockter; Dosch; Drovdal; Fehr; Frantsvog; Froseth; Glassheim; Grande; Guggisberg; Haak; Hanson; Hatlestad; Hawken; Headland; Heilman; Heller; Hofstad; Hogan; Holman; Hunskor; Johnson, D.; Karls; Keiser; Kelsh, J.; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kiefert; Klein; Klemin; Koppelman, K.; Kreidt; Kreun; Laning; Larson; Looyesen; Louser; Martinson; Meier; Mock; Monson; Mooney; Muscha; Nathe; Nelson, J.; Nelson, M.; Onstad; Oversen; Owens; Paur; Pollert; Porter; Rohr; Ruby; Rust; Sanford; Schatz; Schmidt; Silbernagel; Skarphol; Steiner; Streyle; Strinden; Thoreson; Toman; Trottier; Vigasaa; Wall; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Zaiser; Speaker Devlin

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Amerman; Belter; Boschee; Delmore; Gruchalla; Johnson, N.; Kasper; Koppelman, B.; Kretschmar; Maragos; Sukut

Reengrossed HB 1272 passed.

\*\*\*\*\*

**REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE**

**HB 1300, as engrossed:** Your conference committee (Sens. Campbell, Oehlke, Triplett and Reps. Hatlestad, Froseth, Haak) recommends that the **SENATE RECEDE** from the Senate amendments as printed on HJ pages 1301-1302, adopt amendments as follows, and place HB 1300 on the Seventh order:

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1301 and 1302 of the House Journal and pages 1184 and 1185 of the Senate Journal and that Engrossed House Bill No. 1300 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 2, remove "an"

Page 1, line 3, replace "effective date" with "for retroactive application"

Page 1, line 7, remove "and land"

Page 1, line 8, remove the overstrike over "~~and if on the same~~"

Page 1, remove the overstrike over lines 9 through 12

Page 1, line 13, remove the overstrike over "~~building, and up to a maximum of~~"

Page 1, line 13, after "~~two~~" insert "five"

Page 1, line 13, remove the overstrike over "~~additional acres [~~"

Page 1, line 13, after "~~hectare~~" insert "2.02 hectares"

Page 1, line 13, remove the overstrike over the second closing bracket

Page 1, remove the overstrike over lines 16 through 19

Page 1, line 20, overstrike "services" and insert immediately thereafter "purposes"

Page 1, remove the overstrike over line 22

Page 1, line 23, remove the overstrike over "~~from~~"

Page 1, line 23, remove "person if"

Page 1, line 23, remove "received is used for the religious purposes of the religious"

Page 1, line 24, remove "corporation or organization"

Page 2, line 1, replace "**EFFECTIVE DATE**" with "**RETROACTIVE APPLICATION**"

Renumber accordingly

Engrossed HB 1300 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

**CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT**

**REP. HATLESTAD MOVED** that the conference committee report on Engrossed HB 1300 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed HB 1300, as amended, was placed on the Eleventh order of business.

**SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL**

**HB 1300:** A BILL for an Act to amend and reenact subsection 9 of section 57-02-08 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to the property tax exemption for property of churches; and to provide for retroactive application.

**ROLL CALL**

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, the roll

was called and there were 76 YEAS, 7 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 11 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Anderson; Beadle; Becker; Bellew; Boe; Boehning; Brabandt; Brandenburg; Carlson; Damschen; Delzer; Dockter; Dosch; Drovdal; Fehr; Frantsvog; Froseth; Grande; Haak; Hanson; Hatlestad; Hawken; Headland; Heilman; Heller; Hofstad; Hogan; Hunskor; Johnson, D.; Karls; Kelsh, J.; Kelsh, S.; Kempenich; Kiefert; Klein; Klemm; Koppelman, K.; Kreidt; Kreun; Laning; Larson; Looyson; Louser; Martinson; Meier; Monson; Mooney; Muscha; Nathe; Nelson, J.; Onstad; Owens; Paur; Pollert; Porter; Rohr; Ruby; Rust; Sanford; Schatz; Schmidt; Silbernagel; Skarphol; Steiner; Streytle; Strinden; Thoreson; Toman; Trottier; Vigesaa; Wall; Weisz; Wieland; Williams; Zaiser; Speaker Devlin

**NAYS:** Glasshem; Guggisberg; Holman; Keiser; Mock; Nelson, M.; Oversen

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Amerman; Belter; Boschee; Delmore; Gruchalla; Johnson, N.; Kasper; Koppelman, B.; Kretschmar; Maragos; Sukut

Reengrossed HB 1300 passed.

\*\*\*\*\*

#### REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE

**HB 1412, as engrossed:** Your conference committee (Sens. Sitte, Grabinger, Lyson and Reps. Larson, Steiner, Delmore) recommends that the **HOUSE ACCEDE** to the Senate amendments as printed on HJ pages 1230 and 1231 and place HB 1412 on the Seventh order.

Engrossed HB 1412 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

#### CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT

**REP. LARSON MOVED** that the conference committee report on Engrossed HB 1412 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

Engrossed HB 1412, as amended, was placed on the Eleventh order of business.

#### SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILL

**HB 1412:** A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 19-03.1 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to immunity from criminal liability in medical emergencies involving controlled substances; and to amend and reenact sections 5-01-08, 5-01-09, and 14-10-06 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to immunity from criminal liability in medical emergencies involving drugs or alcohol.

#### ROLL CALL

The question being on the final passage of the amended bill, which has been read, the roll was called and there were 34 YEAS, 49 NAYS, 0 EXCUSED, 11 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING.

**YEAS:** Beadle; Becker; Boe; Dosch; Frantsvog; Glasshem; Guggisberg; Haak; Hanson; Hatlestad; Hawken; Heilman; Hogan; Holman; Hunskor; Keiser; Kelsh, J.; Kelsh, S.; Klemm; Kreun; Martinson; Meier; Mock; Mooney; Muscha; Nelson, J.; Nelson, M.; Onstad; Oversen; Rohr; Schatz; Strinden; Williams; Zaiser

**NAYS:** Anderson; Bellew; Boehning; Brabandt; Brandenburg; Carlson; Damschen; Delzer; Dockter; Drovdal; Fehr; Froseth; Grande; Headland; Heller; Hofstad; Johnson, D.; Karls; Kempenich; Kiefert; Klein; Koppelman, K.; Kreidt; Laning; Larson; Looyson; Louser; Monson; Nathe; Owens; Paur; Pollert; Porter; Ruby; Rust; Sanford; Schmidt; Silbernagel; Skarphol; Steiner; Streytle; Thoreson; Toman; Trottier; Vigesaa; Wall; Weisz; Wieland; Speaker Devlin

**ABSENT AND NOT VOTING:** Amerman; Belter; Boschee; Delmore; Gruchalla; Johnson, N.; Kasper; Koppelman, B.; Kretschmar; Maragos; Sukut

Reengrossed HB 1412 failed.

\*\*\*\*\*

**REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE**

**SB 2244, as reengrossed:** Your conference committee (Sens. Larsen, Dever, Axness and Reps. Hofstad, Laning, Muscha) recommends that the **SENATE ACCEDE** to the House amendments as printed on SJ page 942 and place SB 2244 on the Seventh order.

Reengrossed SB 2244 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

**CONSIDERATION OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE REPORT**

**REP. HOFSTAD MOVED** that the conference committee report on Reengrossed SB 2244 be adopted, which motion prevailed on a voice vote.

**MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)**

**MR. SPEAKER:** The Senate does not concur in the House amendments to SB 2222, and the President has appointed as a conference committee to act with a like committee from the House on:

**SB 2222:** Sens. Flakoll; Poolman; Marcellais

**MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**

**MR. PRESIDENT:** The House has adopted the conference committee report on: SB 2244.

**MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**

**MR. PRESIDENT:** The House has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently passed: HB 1272, HB 1300.

**MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**

**MR. PRESIDENT:** The House has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently failed to pass: HB 1048.

**MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**

**MR. PRESIDENT:** The House has adopted the conference committee report and subsequently failed to pass: HB 1412.

**MESSAGE TO THE SENATE FROM THE HOUSE (BUELL J. REICH, CHIEF CLERK)**

**MR. PRESIDENT:** The Speaker has signed: SB 2115, SB 2144, SB 2152, SB 2175, SB 2225, SB 2227, SB 2299, SB 2330, SB 2361.

**MESSAGE TO THE HOUSE FROM THE SENATE (WILLIAM R. HORTON, SECRETARY)**

**MR. SPEAKER:** The President has signed: SB 2126, SB 2129, SB 2132, SB 2162, SB 2213.

**MOTION**

**REP. VIGESAA MOVED** that the absent members be excused, which motion prevailed.

**MOTION**

**REP. VIGESAA MOVED** that the House be on the Fourth, Fifth, Seventh, and Sixteenth orders of business and at the conclusion of those orders, the House stand adjourned until 8:00 a.m., Monday, April 22, 2013, which motion prevailed.

**REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE**

**HB 1099, as engrossed:** Your conference committee (Sens. Poolman, Schaible, Berry and Reps. Kempenich, Dosch, Guggisberg) recommends that the **HOUSE ACCEDE** to the Senate amendments as printed on HJ page 1397 and place HB 1099 on the Seventh order.

Engrossed HB 1099 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

**REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE**

**HB 1136:** Your conference committee (Sens. Hogue, Armstrong, Grabinger and Reps. Klemin, Kretschmar, Hanson) recommends that the **SENATE RECEDE** from the Senate amendments as printed on HJ pages 1397-1422, adopt amendments as

follows, and place HB 1136 on the Seventh order:

That the Senate recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1397-1422 of the House Journal and pages 1263-1288 of the Senate Journal and that House Bill No. 1136 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to amend and reenact sections 11-18-01, 11-18-05, 35-13-02, 35-17-04, 35-17-07, 35-17-08, 35-20-15.1, 35-20-16, 35-29-02, 35-29-04, 35-29-05, 35-30-02, 35-30-05, 35-30-06, 35-31-02, 35-31-05, 35-31-06, 35-34-04, 35-34-06, 35-35-03, 35-37-04, 41-09-72, 41-09-73, and 41-09-84, subsection 2 of section 41-09-87, sections 41-09-94 and 41-09-96, subsection 3 of section 41-09-135, sections 41-10-01, 41-10-05, 47-16-03, 54-09-08, 54-09-09, 54-09-10, and 54-09-11, subsection 5 of section 57-34-10, subsection 4 of section 57-36-09.5, section 57-38-49, subsection 4 of section 57-39.2-13, subsection 4 of section 57-40.2-16, subsection 3 of section 57-40.3-07.1, subsection 4 of section 57-43.1-17.4, subsection 4 of section 57-43.2-16.3, subsection 4 of section 57-43.3-22, subsection 2 of section 57-51-11, and subsection 4 of section 57-63-10 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to filing liens and security interests electronically; to repeal section 57-28-29 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to filing tax liens; to provide for application; to provide for a report to the legislative assembly; and to provide a contingent effective date.

**BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:**

**SECTION 1. AMENDMENT.** Section 11-18-01 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**11-18-01. Recorder's duties - Recording and filing instruments - Abstracts.**

The recorder shall:

1. Keep a full and true record, in proper books or other storage media provided for that purpose, of each patent, deed, mortgage, bill of sale, security agreement, judgment, decree, lien, certificate of sale, and other instrument required to be filed or admitted to record, if the person offering the instrument for filing or recording pays to the recorder the fees provided by law for the filing or recording.
2. Endorse upon each instrument filed with the recorder for record or otherwise the date and the hour and minute of the day of the filing or recording.
3. When the instrument is recorded or filed, endorse on the instrument the book and page or document number, the date, and the hour and minute of the date when it was recorded or filed with the recorder.
4. Prepare a security agreement abstract whenever any person requests the agreement and pays the required fee.
5. ~~Furnish upon written or telephonic request to persons the information contained in financing statements filed to perfect a security interest pursuant to chapter 41-09 when the collateral is farm products, and to provide written confirmation of the oral information provided upon receipt of a fee which shall be the same as for recording that instrument.~~

**SECTION 2. AMENDMENT.** Section 11-18-05 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**11-18-05. Fees of recorder.**

The recorder shall charge and collect the following fees:

1. For recording an instrument affecting title to real estate:

- a. Deeds, mortgages, and all other instruments not specifically provided for in this subsection, ten dollars for the first page and three dollars for each additional page. In addition, for all documents recorded under this section that list more than five sections of land, a fee of one dollar for each additional section listed which is to be recorded in the tract index. Three dollars of the fee collected for the first page of each instrument recorded under this subdivision must be placed in the document preservation fund.
    - (1) "Page" means one side of a single legal size sheet of paper not exceeding eight and one-half inches [21.59 centimeters] in width and fourteen inches [35.56 centimeters] in length.
    - (2) The printed, written, or typed words must be considered legible by the recorder before the page will be accepted for recording.
    - (3) Each real estate instrument must have a legal description considered to be adequate by the recorder before such instrument will be accepted for recording.
    - (4) A space of at least four inches by three and one-half inches [10.16 by 8.89 centimeters] square must be provided on the first or last page of each instrument for the recorder's recording information. If recording information can only be placed on the reverse side of an instrument, an additional page charge must be levied.
  - b. Instruments satisfying, releasing, assigning, subordinating, continuing, amending, or extending more than one instrument previously recorded in the county in which recording is requested, ten dollars for the first page and three dollars for each additional page plus three dollars for each such additional document number or book and page. In addition, for all documents recorded under this section which list more than five separate sections of land, a fee of one dollar for each additional section listed which is to be recorded in the tract index. Three dollars of the fee collected for the first page of each instrument recorded under this subdivision must be placed in the document preservation fund.
  - c. Plats, irregular tracts, or annexations, ten dollars for one lot plus ten cents for each additional lot, with the exception of auditor's lots which must be a single charge of seven dollars.
  - d. All instruments presented for recording after June 30, 2001, must contain a one-inch [2.54-centimeter] top, bottom, or side margin on each page of the instrument for the placement of computerized recording labels. An instrument that does not conform to this margin requirement may be recorded upon payment of an additional fee of ten dollars.
2. For filing any ~~non-central indexing system~~ instrument, ten dollars.
  3. For making certified copies of any recorded instrument or filed ~~non-central indexing system~~ instrument, the charge is five dollars for the first page and two dollars for each additional page. For making a noncertified copy of any recorded instrument or filed ~~non-central indexing system~~ instrument, a fee of not more than one dollar per instrument page. For providing any electronic data extracted from the recorded instrument, a fee of not more than fifty cents per instrument.
  4. For filing, indexing, making, or completing any statement, abstract, or certificate under the Uniform Commercial Code central filing database, the computerized central notice system or the computerized statutory liens database, for receiving printouts, and for other services provided

through the computerized system, the fee is the same as that provided in sections ~~41-09-06 and 54-09-11.~~

5. The recorder may establish procedures for providing access for duplicating records under the recorder's control. Such records include paper, photostat, microfilm, microfiche, and electronic or computer-generated instruments created by governmental employees.
- ~~6.5.~~ Duplicate recorders' records stored offsite as a security measure are not accessible for reproduction.

**SECTION 3. AMENDMENT.** Section 35-13-02 of the North Dakota Century Code, as amended by House Bill No. 1340, as approved by the sixty-third legislative assembly, is amended and reenacted as follows:

**35-13-02. Lien statement - Contents - When required - Filing.**

1. The secretary of state shall prescribe ~~one form~~ an electronic system that can be used to obtain a lien under this section and also be entered in the central indexing system. A person entitled to a lien under this chapter who retains possession of the property made, altered, or repaired is not required to file any statement to perfect the lien. If the possession of the property so made, altered, or repaired is relinquished, the person shall file electronically, within ninety days, or if the property is used for agricultural purposes within one hundred twenty days, or in the exploration for or the production of oil or gas within six months, after the materials are furnished or the labor is completed, ~~in the office of the recorder of the county in which the owner or legal possessor of the property resides~~ central indexing system, a ~~verified written statement~~ showing:
  - a. The labor performed.
  - b. The materials furnished.
  - c. The price agreed upon for the labor performed or materials furnished, or, if no price was agreed upon, the reasonable value thereof.
  - d. The name and address of the person for whom the labor was performed or to whom the materials were furnished.
  - e. The social security number or, in the case of a debtor doing business other than as an individual, the internal revenue service taxpayer identification number of the person for whom the labor was performed or to whom the materials were furnished.
  - f. The name and address of the person claiming the lien.
  - ~~f.g.~~ A description of the property upon which the lien is claimed.
2. A person filing a ~~verified statement~~ shall within thirty days serve notice of the filing, by registered mail, upon the owner or legal possessor of the property. A person entitled to the lien who fails to file a ~~verified statement~~ within the time limited in this section is deemed to have waived the right to a lien.
3. A lienholder may file electronically an amendment to add or correct the social security number or internal revenue service taxpayer identification number of the debtor, to correct the spelling of the debtor's or lienholder's name, or to correct or change the address of the debtor or lienholder. The secretary of state shall ~~prescribe a form that may be used~~ provide a means to amend electronically the repairman's lien that has been filed pursuant to this section. The amendment of the lien does not affect the priority of the lien.

**SECTION 4. AMENDMENT.** Section 35-17-04 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**35-17-04. Procedure to obtain lien - Statement filed - Contents - Waiver.**

Any person entitled to an agister's lien, within ninety days after taking possession of the animal, may file electronically in the office of the recorder in any county in this state or in the office of the secretary of state central indexing system, a statement signed by the filer containing the following information:

1. The number of and a description of the animals subject to the lien and the legal description as to the location of the animals.
2. The name and address of the person for whom the animals are kept.
3. The name and address of the lienholder.
4. The price agreed upon for keeping the animals and, if no price was agreed upon, the reasonable value of the services.
5. The social security number or, in the case of a debtor doing business other than as an individual, the internal revenue service taxpayer identification number of the person for whom the animals are kept.

The secretary of state shall ~~prescribe one form that can be used~~ provide a means to obtain electronically a lien under this section or gain protection under the central notice system, or both. If the statement is not filed within ninety days as required by this section, the person entitled to the lien under section 35-17-03 waives the lien.

**SECTION 5. AMENDMENT.** Section 35-17-07 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**35-17-07. Amendment of lien.**

A lienholder may file electronically an amendment to correct the social security or internal revenue service taxpayer identification number of the debtor, to correct the spelling of the debtor's or lienholder's name, or to correct or change the address of the debtor or lienholder. The secretary of state shall ~~prescribe a form that may be used to provide a means to electronically amend or assign~~ the agister's lien that has been filed pursuant to section 35-17-04. The amendment or assignment of a lien does not affect the priority of the lien.

**SECTION 6. AMENDMENT.** Section 35-17-08 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**35-17-08. Fees - Penalty.**

The fee for filing electronically an agister's lien and related documents ~~with the secretary of state or the county recorder in the central notice system~~ is the same as that provided for in section 41-09-96. If a lienholder fails to file electronically a termination statement within sixty days after the lien has been satisfied, the lienholder is liable to the debtor for one hundred dollars.

**SECTION 7. AMENDMENT.** Section 35-20-15.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**35-20-15.1. Amendment of lien for unpaid earned property or casualty insurance premiums.**

A lienholder may file an amendment to correct the social security or internal revenue service taxpayer identification number of the debtor, to correct the spelling of the debtor's or lienholder's name, or to correct or change the address of the debtor or lienholder. The secretary of state shall ~~prescribe a form that may be used~~ provide a means to amend electronically or assign the unpaid earned property or casualty

insurance premium lien that has been filed under section 35-20-15. The amendment or assignment of a lien does not affect the priority of the lien.

**SECTION 8. AMENDMENT.** Section 35-20-16 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**35-20-16. Procedure to obtain unpaid earned property or casualty insurance premium lien - Filing.**

The secretary of state shall ~~prescribe a form that can be used~~ provide a means to obtain electronically a lien under this section and also be entered in the central indexing system. Any person entitled to an unpaid earned property or casualty insurance premium lien, within ninety days after termination of coverage, shall file in ~~the office of the recorder of the county or counties in which the property covered by the policy is located~~ central indexing system and with any loss payee named in the policy, ~~a verified~~ an electronic statement ~~in writing~~ stating all of the following:

1. The name and address of the policyholder.
2. The name and address of the lienholder.
3. The nature and quantity of insurance coverage provided.
4. The amount of unpaid earned premium.
5. A description of the property covered by the insurance and subject to the lien.
6. That a lien is claimed upon the property described.
7. The name of the county or counties where the property is located.
8. The social security number of the debtor, or in the case of a debtor doing business other than as an individual, the internal revenue service taxpayer identification number of that person.

**SECTION 9. AMENDMENT.** Section 35-29-02 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**35-29-02. Place of filing.**

1. Notices of liens, certificates, and other notices affecting federal tax liens or other federal liens must be filed in accordance with this chapter.
2. Notices of liens upon real property for obligations payable to the United States and certificates and notices affecting the liens must be filed in ~~the office of the recorder of~~ central indexing system and associated to the county in which the real property subject to the liens is situated.
3. Notices of federal liens upon personal property, whether tangible or intangible, for obligations payable to the United States and certificates and notices affecting the liens must be filed as follows:
  - a. If the person against whose interest the lien applies is a corporation, limited liability company, or a partnership whose principal executive office is in this state, as these entities are defined in the internal revenue laws of the United States, in the office of the secretary of state.
  - b. If the person against whose interest the lien applies is a trust that is not covered by subdivision a, in the office of the secretary of state.
  - c. If the person against whose interest the lien applies is the estate of a decedent, in the office of the secretary of state.

- d. In all other cases, in the office of the recorder of the county where the person against whose interest the lien applies resides at the time of filing of the notice of lien.
4. The secretary of state shall provide a means for the United States to file any documentation according to this chapter.

**SECTION 10. AMENDMENT.** Section 35-29-04 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**35-29-04. Duties of filing officer.**

1. If a notice of federal lien, a refiling of a notice of federal lien, or a notice of revocation of any certificate described in subsection 2 is presented to a filing officer who is:
  - a. The secretary of state, ~~the secretary~~ shall cause the notice to be marked, held, and indexed in accordance with the provisions of section 41-09-90 as if the notice were a financing statement within the meaning of title 41; or
  - b. ~~Any other officer described in section 35-29-02, the officer~~The secretary of state shall endorse thereon the officer's identification and the date and time of receipt and immediately file it alphabetically or enter it in an alphabetical index showing the name and address of the person named in the notice, the date and time of receipt, the title and address of the official or entity certifying the lien, and the total amount appearing on the notice of lien.
2. If a certificate of release, nonattachment, discharge, or subordination of any lien is presented to the secretary of state for filing, the secretary shall do all of the following:
  - a. Cause a certificate of release or nonattachment to be marked, held, and indexed as if the certificate were a termination statement within the meaning of title 41, but the notice of lien to which the certificate relates may not be removed from the files.
  - b. Cause a certificate of discharge or subordination to be marked, held, and indexed as if the certificate were a release of collateral within the meaning of title 41.
3. If a refiled notice of federal lien referred to in subsection 1 or any certificate or notice referred to in subsection 2 is presented for filing to ~~any other filing officer specified in section 35-29-02, the officer~~secretary of state shall permanently attach the refiled notice or the certificate to the original notice of lien and enter the refiled notice or the certificate with the date of filing in any alphabetical lien index on the line where original notice of lien is entered.
4. ~~Upon request of any~~Any person, the filing officer shall issue the officer's certificate showing may search the central indexing system to determine whether there is on file, on the date and hour stated therein, any notice of lien or certificate or notice affecting any lien filed under this chapter or chapter 35-28 as it existed prior to enactment of this chapter, naming a particular person, and if a notice or certificate is on file, giving the date and hour of filing of each notice or certificate. ~~The fee for a certificate is one dollar and twenty-five cents for each notice or certificate reported therein. Upon request, the filing officer shall furnish a copy of any notice of federal lien, or notice or certificate affecting a federal lien, for a fee of one dollar, plus seventy-five cents for the second and each succeeding page.~~

5. The secretary of state shall fulfill any of the functions described in this section by electronic means with the same legal effect as if the function had been completed on a physical document.

**SECTION 11. AMENDMENT.** Section 35-29-05 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**35-29-05. Fees.**

1. The fee for filing and indexing each notice of lien is:
  - a. ~~For a lien on real estate, ten dollars, plus three dollars for the second and each succeeding page.~~
  - b. ~~For a lien on tangible and intangible personal property, ten dollars, plus five dollars to record if filed with a county recorder.~~
  - c. ~~For all other notices, including a certificate of discharge, nonattachment, or subordination, ten dollars, plus ten dollars if filed toward a lien on real estate with a county recorder.~~
  - d. ~~For a nonstandard statement when presented for filing, an additional fee of five dollars plus one dollar per page, and if filed on a real estate lien with a county recorder, an additional ten dollars plus three dollars for the second and each succeeding page.~~
  - e. ~~For a certificate of release, five dollars, which must be paid at the time the lien is filed in the central indexing system is established according to section 41-09-96. Fees to record liens with a county recorder are the same as provided for under section 11-18-05.~~
2. The officer may not file or record an instrument under this chapter unless the person offering the instrument for filing or recording has first paid the requisite filing or recording fee.

**SECTION 12. AMENDMENT.** Section 35-30-02 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**35-30-02. Procedure to obtain lien.**

1. To obtain an agricultural processor's lien, the person entitled to the lien, within ninety days after the processing is completed, shall file electronically a statement signed by the filer in the office of the recorder in any county in this state or in the office of the secretary of state central indexing system. The statement must contain the following information:
  - a. The name and address of the person for whom the processing was done.
  - b. The name and address of the processor.
  - c. A description of the crops or agricultural products and their amount, if known, subject to the lien together with a reasonable description, including the county as to the location where the crops or agricultural products were grown and the year the crop is to be harvested or was harvested.
  - d. The price agreed upon for processing, or if no price was agreed upon, the reasonable value of the processing.
  - e. The social security number or, in the case of a debtor doing business other than as an individual, the internal revenue service taxpayer identification number of the person for whom the processing was done.

- f. A description of the processing services and the first date the services were furnished.
2. ~~The secretary of state and the office of the recorder in any county in this state with which a statement signed by the filer under subsection 1 is submitted for filing shall reject the statement unless proof of mailing of notification of the lien to the debtor's last known address by registered or certified mail with return receipt requested is filed with the statement.~~
3. The secretary of state shall ~~prescribe one form that can be used~~provide an electronic means to obtain a lien under this section or gain protection under the central notice system, or both. Before a processor's lien is filed, a billing statement for the services performed must include notice to the agricultural producer that if the amount due to the agricultural processor is not satisfied a lien may be filed.

**SECTION 13. AMENDMENT.** Section 35-30-05 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**35-30-05. Amendment of lien.**

A lienholder may file electronically an amendment to correct the social security or internal revenue service taxpayer identification number of the debtor, to correct the spelling of the debtor's or lienholder's name, or to correct or change the address of the debtor or lienholder. The secretary of state shall ~~prescribe a form that may be used~~provide an electronic means to amend or assign the agricultural processor's lien that has been filed pursuant to section 35-30-02. The amendment or assignment of a lien does not affect the priority of the lien.

**SECTION 14. AMENDMENT.** Section 35-30-06 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**35-30-06. Fees - Penalty.**

The fee for filing electronically an agricultural processor's lien and related documents ~~with the secretary of state or the county recorder in the central indexing system~~ is the same as that provided for in section 41-09-96. If a lienholder fails to file a termination statement within sixty days after the lien has been satisfied, the lienholder is liable to the debtor for one hundred dollars.

**SECTION 15. AMENDMENT.** Section 35-31-02 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**35-31-02. Procedure to obtain lien.**

To obtain an agricultural supplier's lien, except an agricultural supplier's lien for furnishing petroleum products, the person entitled to the lien, within one hundred twenty days after the supplies are furnished or the services performed, shall file electronically a statement ~~signed by the filer in the office of the recorder of any county in this state or in the office of the secretary of state~~central notice system. To obtain an agricultural supplier's lien for furnishing and delivering petroleum products, the person entitled to the lien, within one hundred fifty days after the petroleum products are furnished or delivered, shall file electronically a statement ~~signed by the filer in the office of the recorder of any county in the state or in the office of the secretary of state~~central notice system. The statement must contain the following information:

1. The name and address of the person to whom the supplies were furnished.
2. The name and address of the supplier.
3. A description of the crops, agricultural products, or livestock and their amount or number, if known, subject to the lien together with a reasonable description, including the county as to the location of the

crops, agricultural products, or livestock and the year the crop is to be harvested or was harvested.

4. A description and value of the supplies and the first date furnished.
5. The social security number or, in the case of a debtor doing business other than as an individual, the internal revenue service taxpayer identification number of the person to whom the supplies were furnished.

The secretary of state shall ~~prescribe one form that can be used~~ provide an electronic means to obtain a lien under this section or gain protection under the central notice system, or both. Before a supplier's lien is filed, a billing statement for the supplies furnished must include notice to the agricultural producer that if the amount due to the agricultural supplier is not satisfied a lien may be filed.

**SECTION 16. AMENDMENT.** Section 35-31-05 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**35-31-05. Amendment of lien.**

A lienholder may file electronically an amendment to correct the social security or internal revenue service taxpayer identification number of the debtor, to correct the spelling of the debtor's or lienholder's name, or to correct or change the address of the debtor or lienholder. The secretary of state shall ~~prescribe a form that may be used~~ provide an electronic means to amend or assign the agricultural supplier's lien that has been filed pursuant to section 35-31-02. The amendment or assignment of a lien does not affect the priority of the lien.

**SECTION 17. AMENDMENT.** Section 35-31-06 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**35-31-06. Fees - Penalty.**

The fee for filing an agricultural supplier's lien and related documents ~~with the secretary of state or the county recorder~~ in the central notice system is the same as that provided for in section 41-09-96. If a lienholder fails to file a termination statement within sixty days after the lien has been satisfied, the lienholder is liable to the debtor for one hundred dollars.

**SECTION 18. AMENDMENT.** Section 35-34-04 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**35-34-04. Vessel lien.**

1. In the case of a vessel, the child support agency may file electronically a notice of lien ~~with the secretary of state~~ in the central indexing system if the value of the vessel is estimated to be at least twice the cost of establishing the lien. The notice must contain a description of the make, model designation, and serial number of the vessel, including its identification or registration number, if any, and the name, social security number, and last-known address of the obligor. The notice of lien must state that the child support obligation is past due and that a copy of the notice of lien has been served on the obligor by first-class mail at the obligor's last-known address.
2. Upon filing of the notice of lien in accordance with this section, the notice of lien must be indexed ~~by the secretary of state~~ in the central indexing system and may be enforced and foreclosed in the same manner as a security agreement under the provisions of title 41.
3. The secretary of state shall remove and destroy the lien notification statement in the same manner as provided for other liens in section 11-18-14 for the recorder.

4. The child support agency may file electronically an amendment to correct the spelling of the obligor's name, to correct the obligor's social security number, or to correct or change the address of the obligor.

**SECTION 19. AMENDMENT.** Section 35-34-06 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**35-34-06. Lien on other personal property.**

1. In the case of untitled personal property other than an account maintained in a financial institution, the child support agency may establish a lien on such personal property by filing electronically a notice of lien ~~with the office of the recorder in the county in which the personal property may be found, with the secretary of state, in the central indexing system~~ or with a third party who is in possession of the personal property. The notice must particularly describe the property to be subjected to the lien and the name and last-known address of the obligor. The notice of lien must state that the child support obligation is past due and that a copy of the notice of lien has been served on the obligor by first-class mail at the obligor's last-known address.
2. The information filed ~~with a recorder or with the secretary of state~~ under this section must be included in the computerized central indexing system maintained by the secretary of state under section 54-09-09 and must be accessible to the public on the same terms and conditions that apply to access other statutory lien information maintained in the computerized central indexing system.
3. Upon filing of the notice of lien in accordance with this section, the lien attaches to and is perfected against all personal property described in the notice.

**SECTION 20. AMENDMENT.** Section 35-35-03 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**35-35-03. Filing officer may reject lien - Filing officer to accept notice of invalid lien - Filing officer not liable.**

1. Any filing officer may reject for filing or recording any nonconsensual common-law lien.
2. If a nonconsensual common-law lien has been accepted for filing or recording, the filing officer shall accept for filing any ~~sworn~~ notice of invalid lien ~~signed and submitted electronically~~ by the person against whom such a lien was filed or that person's attorney. The notice must be captioned "Notice of Invalid Lien" and must state the name and address of the person on whose behalf the notice is filed, the name and address of the lien claimant, and a clear reference to the document or documents the person believes constitute a nonconsensual common-law lien. The notice must be filed in such a manner that any search of the records which reveals the lien the notice refers to will also reveal the notice of invalid lien. The filing officer shall mail or deliver electronically a copy of the notice of invalid lien to the lien claimant at the lien claimant's last-known address within one business day.
3. A filing officer, county, or the state may not be held liable for filing a nonconsensual common-law lien, or for filing a ~~sworn~~ notice of invalid lien pursuant to this section.
4. A fee may not be charged for the filing of a notice of invalid lien against a filed nonconsensual common-law lien.

**SECTION 21. AMENDMENT.** Section 35-37-04 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**35-37-04. Perfection of lien - Verified notice - Effect of instruments - Effective date of lien.**

1. If the proceeds for oil or gas which are required to be paid are not paid to the interest owner when due, the interest owner may perfect the security interest and lien by filing electronically a form-UCC-1A in the central indexing system and recording the lien in the real estate records in the office of the county recorder of the county in which the well is located. If the oil and gas owner's lien is not filed within ninety days from the date of production, the security interest is not perfected and does not give the interest owner priority over a perfected security interest in the same oil, gas, or proceeds of the oil or gas.
2. ~~All instruments that are presented to a county recorder for filing in accordance with subsection 1 are effective as financing statements even though the signature of the debtor may not appear on the lien.~~ Liens must be filed electronically in the central indexing system and recorded in the real estate records of the county according to sections 11-18-01 and 11-18-05. Liens may be terminated in the same manner as financing statements.
3. Upon perfection by filing, the security interest and lien of the interest owner takes priority over the rights of all persons whose rights or claims arise or attach thereafter to the oil or gas unpaid for, or the proceeds of oil or gas if the oil or gas has been sold, including those that arise or attach between the time the security interest and lien attaches and the time of filing. The security interest and lien created pursuant to this chapter do not have priority over the security interest and lien rights previously created and perfected or an operating agreement or other voluntary agreement for the development and operation of the property.

**SECTION 22. AMENDMENT.** Section 41-09-72 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**41-09-72. (9-501) Filing office.**

1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, if the local law of this state governs perfection of a security interest or agricultural lien, the office in which to file a financing statement to perfect the security interest or agricultural lien is:
  - a. The office designated for the filing or recording of a record of a mortgage on the related real property, if:
    - (1) The collateral is as-extracted collateral or timber to be cut; or
    - (2) The financing statement is filed as a fixture filing and the collateral is goods that are or are to become fixtures; or
  - b. The office of the recorder in any county in this state or in the office of the secretary of state, in all other cases, including a case in which the collateral is goods that are or are to become fixtures and the financing statement is not filed as a fixture filing.
2. The office in which to file a financing statement to perfect a security interest in collateral, including fixtures, of a transmitting utility is the office of the secretary of state. The financing statement also constitutes a fixture filing as to the collateral indicated in the financing statement which is or is to become fixtures.
3. The secretary of state shall provide an electronic means for filing any record required or permitted to be filed by this title. This may include use of business-to-business methods using a common data format and must include a web-based application. Any record that is not filed electronically must be rejected.

**SECTION 23. AMENDMENT.** Section 41-09-73 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**41-09-73. (9-502) (Effective through June 30, 2013) Contents of financing statement - Record of mortgage as financing statement - Time of filing financing statement - Amending financing statement.**

1. Subject to subsection 2, a financing statement is sufficient only if the statement:
  - a. Provides the name of the debtor;
  - b. Provides the name of the secured party or a representative of the secured party;
  - c. Indicates the collateral covered by the financing statement;
  - d. If it is a financing statement that is to be filed to gain protection under the central notice system, includes a reasonable description of the property, including the county in which the property is located, and any other additional information required by the Food Security Act of 1985 [Pub. L. 99-198; Stat. 1535; 7 U.S.C. 1631], as prescribed by the secretary of state, and, to be sufficient a financing statement must include the name and address of the secured party; and unless electronically filed, the signatures of the debtor and secured parties;
  - e. Provides a mailing address for the secured party; and
  - f. Provides a mailing address for the debtor.
2. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2 of section 41-09-72, to be sufficient, a financing statement that covers as-extracted collateral or timber to be cut, or which is filed as a fixture filing and covers goods that are or are to become fixtures, must satisfy subsection 1 and also:
  - a. Indicate that it covers this type of collateral;
  - b. Indicate that it is to be filed for record in the real property records;
  - c. Provide a description of the real property to which the collateral is related sufficient to give constructive notice of a mortgage under the law of this state if the description were contained in a record of the mortgage of the real property; and
  - d. If the debtor does not have an interest of record in the real property, provide the name of a record owner.
3. A record of a mortgage is effective, from the date of recording, as a financing statement filed as a fixture filing or as a financing statement covering as-extracted collateral or timber to be cut only if:
  - a. The record indicates the goods or accounts that it covers;
  - b. The goods are or are to become fixtures related to the real property described in the record or the collateral is related to the real property described in the record and is as-extracted collateral or timber to be cut;
  - c. The record satisfies the requirements for a financing statement in this section other than an indication that it is to be filed in the real property records; and
  - d. The record is duly recorded.

4. A financing statement may be filed before a security agreement is made or a security interest otherwise attaches.
5. A financing statement filed to gain protection under the central notice system must be amended within three months of a material change to reflect that change. The amended financing statement must be signed by both the debtor and secured party and filed in the same manner as the original financing statement. An electronically filed amendment does not need to be signed.
6. Any social security number or federal tax identification number submitted on a financing statement filed pursuant to this chapter as a central indexing filing prior to January 1, 2012, is an exempt record as defined by subsection 5 of section 44-04-17.1 and may not be disclosed as part of any search under section 41-09-94 or 41-09-96 or as part of a copy of the record. After December 31, 2011, a debtor's social security number or federal tax identification number may not be filed pursuant to this chapter in the filing office with the central indexing system and may not be recorded in the real property records.

**(Effective after June 30, 2013) Contents of financing statement - Record of mortgage as financing statement - Time of filing financing statement - Amending financing statement.**

1. Subject to subsection 2, a financing statement is sufficient only if the statement:
  - a. Provides the name of the debtor;
  - b. Provides the name of the secured party or a representative of the secured party;
  - c. Indicates the collateral covered by the financing statement; and
  - d. If it is a financing statement that is to be filed to gain protection under the central notice system, includes a reasonable description of the property, including the county in which the property is located, and any other additional information required by the Food Security Act of 1985 [Pub. L. 99-198; Stat. 1535; 7 U.S.C. 1631], as prescribed by the secretary of state, and, to be sufficient a financing statement must include the name and address of the secured party; and unless electronically filed, the signatures of the debtor and secured parties;
  - e. ~~Provides a mailing address for the secured party; and~~
  - f. ~~Provides a mailing address for the debtor.~~
2. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2 of section 41-09-72, to be sufficient, a financing statement that covers as-extracted collateral or timber to be cut, or which is filed as a fixture filing and covers goods that are or are to become fixtures, must satisfy subsection 1 and also:
  - a. Indicate that it covers this type of collateral;
  - b. Indicate that it is to be filed for record in the real property records;
  - c. Provide a description of the real property to which the collateral is related sufficient to give constructive notice of a mortgage under the law of this state if the description were contained in a record of the mortgage of the real property; and
  - d. If the debtor does not have an interest of record in the real property, provide the name of a record owner.

3. A record of a mortgage is effective, from the date of recording, as a financing statement filed as a fixture filing or as a financing statement covering as-extracted collateral or timber to be cut only if:
  - a. The record indicates the goods or accounts that it covers;
  - b. The goods are or are to become fixtures related to the real property described in the record or the collateral is related to the real property described in the record and is as-extracted collateral or timber to be cut;
  - c. The record satisfies the requirements for a financing statement in this section, but:
    - (1) The record need not indicate that it is to be filed in the real property records; ~~and~~
    - (2) The record sufficiently provides the name of a debtor who is an individual if the record provides the individual name of the debtor or the surname and first personal name of the debtor, even if the debtor is an individual to whom subdivision d of subsection 1 of section 41-09-74 applies; and
    - (3) The mortgage may not include a social security number or internal revenue service taxpayer identification number; and
  - d. The record is duly recorded.
4. A financing statement may be filed before a security agreement is made or a security interest otherwise attaches.
5. A financing statement filed to gain protection under the central notice system must be amended within three months of a material change to reflect that change. The amended financing statement must be signed by both the debtor and secured party and filed in the same manner as the original financing statement. An electronically filed amendment does not need to be signed.
6. Any social security number or ~~federal tax~~internal revenue service taxpayer identification number submitted on a financing statement filed pursuant to this chapter as a central indexing filing ~~prior to January 1, 2012,~~ is an exempt record as defined by subsection 5 of section 44-04-17.1 and may not be disclosed as part of any search under section 41-09-94 or 41-09-96 or as part of a copy of the record. ~~After December 31, 2011, a~~ debtor's social security number or ~~federal tax~~internal revenue service taxpayer identification number ~~may not be filed pursuant to this chapter in the filing office with the central indexing system and may not be recorded in the real property records as provided for under section 11-18-23.2.~~

**SECTION 24. AMENDMENT.** Section 41-09-84 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**41-09-84. (9-513) Termination statement - Remedies - Fees.**

1. If a financing statement covering consumer goods is filed after December 31, 1973, then within one month or within ten days following written demand by the debtor after there is no outstanding secured obligation and no commitment to make advances, incur obligations, or otherwise give value, the secured party shall file ~~with each filing officer with whom the financing statement was filed~~electronically in the central indexing system, a termination statement to the effect that the secured party no longer claims a security interest under the financing statement, which must be identified by file number. In other cases when there is no outstanding secured obligation and no written commitment between the

secured party and the debtor to make advances, incur obligations, or otherwise give value, the secured party, unless requested by the debtor in writing to continue the filing, ~~must send to each filing officer with whom the financing statement was filed,~~ shall file electronically a termination statement to the effect that the secured party no longer claims a security interest under the financing statement nor under the central notice system, which shall be identified by file number. If the affected secured party fails to file a termination statement as required by this subsection within sixty days of when the secured obligation is fully satisfied, and the debtor has not requested in writing that the filing be continued, then under section 41-09-120 the secured party is liable to the debtor for one hundred dollars and for any loss caused to the debtor by such failure. The debtor's written request for a filing to be continued may be made at any time and be effective under this section. If the affected secured party fails to file a termination statement within ten days after proper written demand by the debtor, then under section 41-09-120 the secured party is liable to the debtor for one hundred dollars and for any loss caused to the debtor by such failure.

2. Except as otherwise provided in section 41-09-81, upon the filing of a termination statement ~~with the filing office,~~ the financing statement to which the termination statement relates ceases to be effective. Except as provided in section 41-09-81, for purposes of subsection 7 of section 41-09-90, subsection 1 of section 41-09-93, and subsection ~~3~~2 of section 41-09-94, the ~~electronic filing with the filing office~~ of a termination statement relating to a financing statement that indicates that the debtor is a transmitting utility also causes the effectiveness of the financing statement to lapse.
3. The fee for filing and indexing a termination statement, ~~including sending or delivering the financing statement,~~ is five dollars. ~~For any financing statement filed after April 8, 1991, the fee must be paid at the time is~~ included in the fee for filing the financing statement ~~is paid~~.

**SECTION 25. AMENDMENT.** Subsection 2 of section 41-09-87 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

2. Filing does not occur with respect to a record that a filing office refuses to accept because:
  - a. The record is not communicated by a method or medium of communication authorized by the filing office;
  - b. An amount equal to or greater than the applicable filing fee is not tendered;
  - c. The filing office is unable to index the record because:
    - (1) In the case of an initial financing statement, the record does not provide a name for the debtor;
    - (2) In the case of an amendment or correction statement, the record:
      - (a) Does not identify the initial financing statement as required by section 41-09-83 or 41-09-89, as applicable; or
      - (b) Identifies an initial financing statement whose effectiveness has lapsed under section 41-09-86;
    - (3) In the case of an initial financing statement that provides the name of a debtor identified as an individual or an amendment that provides a name of a debtor identified as an individual which was not previously provided in the financing statement to

which the record relates, the record does not identify the debtor's last name; or

- (4) In the case of a record filed or recorded in the filing office described in subdivision a of subsection 1 of section 41-09-72, the record does not provide a sufficient description of the real property to which it relates;
- d. In the case of an initial financing statement or an amendment that adds a secured party of record, the record does not provide a name and mailing address for the secured party of record;
- e. In the case of an initial financing statement or an amendment that provides a name of a debtor which was not previously provided in the financing statement to which the amendment relates, the record does not:
  - (1) Provide a mailing address for the debtor;
  - (2) Indicate whether the debtor is an individual or an organization; or
  - (3) If the financing statement indicates that the debtor is an organization, provide:
    - (a) A type of organization for the debtor;
    - (b) A jurisdiction of organization for the debtor; or
    - (c) An organizational identification number for the debtor or indicate that the debtor has none;
- f. In the case of an assignment reflected in an initial financing statement under subsection 1 of section 41-09-85 or an amendment filed under subsection 2 of section 41-09-85, the record does not provide a name and mailing address for the assignee; ~~or~~
- g. In the case of a continuation statement, the record is not filed within the six-month period prescribed by subsection 4 of section 41-09-86; or
- h. The record does not contain the social security number or the internal revenue service taxpayer identification number of the debtor.

**SECTION 26. AMENDMENT.** Section 41-09-94 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**41-09-94. (9-523) Information from filing office - Sale or license of records.**

1. ~~If a~~ Any person that files a written record request may request electronically an acknowledgment of the filing, the filing office a filing. The central indexing system shall send provide to the person detailed information and an image of the record, if not filed electronically, showing the number assigned to the record pursuant to subdivision a of subsection 1 of section 41-09-90 and the date and time of the filing of the record. However, if the person furnishes a copy of the record to the filing office, the filing office may instead:
  - a. ~~Note upon the copy the number assigned to the record pursuant to subdivision a of subsection 1 of section 41-09-90 and the date and time of the filing of the record; and~~
  - b. ~~Send the copy to the person.~~

2. ~~If a person files a record other than a written record, the filing office shall communicate to the person an acknowledgment that provides:~~
  - a. ~~The information in the record;~~
  - b. ~~The number assigned to the record pursuant to subdivision a of subsection 1 of section 41-09-90; and~~
  - c. ~~The date and time of the filing of the record.~~
3. ~~The filing office~~central indexing system shall communicate ~~or otherwise make available in a record~~electronically the following information to any person that requests it:
  - a. Whether there is on file on a date and time specified by the ~~filing office~~central indexing system, ~~but not a date earlier than three business days before the filing office receives the request, any verified statement of an agricultural lien created under chapter 35-17, 35-30, or 35-31 or any financing statement that:~~
    - (1) Designates a particular debtor or, if the request so states, designates a particular debtor at the address specified in the request;
    - (2) Has not lapsed under section 41-09-86 with respect to all secured parties of record; and
    - (3) Effective January 1, 2002, if the request so states, has lapsed under section 41-09-86 and a record of which is maintained by the ~~filing office~~central indexing system under subsection 1 of section 41-09-93;
  - b. ~~The date and time of filing of each verified statement and each financing statement; and~~
  - c. ~~The information provided in each verified statement and each financing statement.~~
4. ~~In complying with its duty under subsection 3, the filing office may communicate information in any medium. However, if requested, the filing office shall communicate information by issuing a written certificate.~~
- 5.3. ~~The filing office~~If a request to the central indexing system cannot be automatically accepted, the secretary of state shall perform the acts required by subsections 1 through 4 at the time and in the manner prescribed by filing office rule, butand 2 not later than two business days after the ~~filing office~~central indexing system receives the request.
- 6.4. ~~At least weekly, the secretary of state shall offer to sell or license to the public on a nonexclusive basis, in bulk, copies~~detailed information of all records filed in it under this part, in every medium from time to time filed ~~within the central indexing system.~~

**SECTION 27. AMENDMENT.** Section 41-09-96 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**41-09-96. (9-525) Fees.**

1. The fee for filing and indexing an original statement under this title is ~~fifteen~~forty dollars ~~plus one dollar per additional page. When a nonstandard statement is presented for filing, an additional fee of five dollars must be paid.~~ An additional fee may not be charged for the same statement to gain protection under the central notice system.

2. ~~The fee for filing and indexing an amendment, including continuations, assignments, releases, or correction statements under this title is ten forty dollars plus one dollar per additional page. An additional fee may not be charged for the same document to gain protection under the central notice system.~~
3. The fee for filing and indexing a continuation under this title is thirty dollars. An additional fee may not be charged for the same document to gain protection under the central notice system.
4. A fee may not be charged for responding to a central indexing system response to an electronic request for information:
  - a. Information from the filing office central indexing system communicating whether there is on file any financing statement or verified statement naming a particular debtor.
  - b. Information on specific filings on a particular debtor.
  - c. Copies of each filing on a particular debtor.
  - d. Certified copies of filings on a particular debtor.
- 4-5. ~~The fee for a filing office central indexing response providing information on specific filings on submitted by a particular debtor secured party is seven five hundred dollars per debtor for the first five entries, plus two dollars for each additional five entries or fraction thereafter.~~
5. ~~The fee for a filing office providing copies of each filing for a particular debtor is seven dollars per debtor plus two dollars per page for each page over three pages.~~
6. ~~The fee for a filing office providing certified copies of filings on a particular debtor is ten dollars plus two dollars per page for attachments.~~
- 7-6. Any fees collected by the secretary of state pursuant to this chapter and all other filings entered into the central indexing system must be deposited in the general fund in the state treasury, except with the exception of the fees collected under subsection 64 of section 41-09-94, subsection 4 of this section, and a portion of the filing fees specifically identified in section 54-09-11, which must be deposited in the secretary of state's general services operating fund.

**SECTION 28. AMENDMENT.** Subsection 3 of section 41-09-135 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

3. The filing of a continuation statement after this Act takes effect does not continue the effectiveness of the financing statement filed before this Act takes effect. However, upon the timely filing of a continuation statement after this Act takes effect, no later than is required by section 41-09-86, and in accordance with the law of the jurisdiction governing perfection as provided in this chapter as amended by this Act, the effectiveness of a financing statement filed in the same office in that jurisdiction before this Act takes effect continues for the period provided by the law of that jurisdiction.

**SECTION 29. AMENDMENT.** Section 41-10-01 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**41-10-01. Definitions.**

As used in this chapter:

1. "Authorized", when used with reference to a financing statement record, means that the financing statement record was filed by a person authorized to do so as provided in sections 41-09-80 and 41-09-130.
2. "Debtor" means a natural person whose name was provided in a financing statement record as an individual debtor or one of the types of persons listed in section 41-09-76.
3. "Filing office" or "filing officer" refers to the ~~appropriate office or officer~~central indexing system, which must be provided by the secretary of state, where a financing statement record is to be filed electronically as provided by section 41-09-72, ~~including the county recorder, the secretary of state, and other designated filing officers.~~
4. "Financing statement record" means an initial financing statement, an amendment that adds collateral covered by a financing statement, and an amendment that adds a debtor to a financing statement as such terms are used in this title.

**SECTION 30. AMENDMENT.** Section 41-10-05 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**41-10-05. Venue.**

An action under this chapter may be brought in any district court ~~in the county in which the financing statement record is presented for filing or~~ in a county where any of the persons who may bring an action under this chapter reside.

**SECTION 31. AMENDMENT.** Section 47-16-03 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**47-16-03. Filing farm lease containing reservation of title to crop - Waiver of rights on failure to file.**

1. When a lease of a farm contains a provision reserving title in the lessor to any part of the crops in excess of the rental share of the lessor until the stated conditions of the lease have been complied with by the lessee, such lease must be filed in the office of the recorder in the county in which the land described therein is located if notice by a real estate recording is sought, and must be filed electronically in the central indexing system if recording in the central notice system is sought, prior to July first in the year in which the crops are raised to render such reservation of title effective as to subsequent purchasers or encumbrancers of any part of the grain over and above the lessor's rental share produced upon the land.
2. The failure to file such lease or contract in accordance with this section constitutes a waiver by the lessor of all rights reserved by that person over and above that person's rental share in such crops as against any subsequent purchaser or encumbrancer of the lessee.
3. The secretary of state ~~may prescribe a form which shall provide an~~ electronic system that includes the pertinent information from the lease that may be filed in the central notice system. A lessor may file this ~~form with the recorder~~ electronic statement and obtain the same rights under this section as if the lessor had filed the lease.
4. The fee required to file and index this notice of lease is:
  - a. As provided in section 11-18-05, if the notice of lease is only a real estate recording;
  - b. As provided in section ~~41-09-06~~ 41-09-96, if the notice of lease is filed only to gain protection under the central notice system; or

- c. ~~As provided in section 11-18-05, if the notice of lease is both a real estate recording and filed to gain protection under the central notice system. An additional fee may not be charged for the same statement~~ a real estate recording is sought and according to section 41-09-96 if electronically filed to gain protection under the central notice system.

**SECTION 32. AMENDMENT.** Section 54-09-08 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**54-09-08. Secretary of state's general services operating fund.**

The secretary of state's general services operating fund is a special fund in the state treasury. Moneys in the fund are to be used pursuant to legislative appropriations for the provision of services under section 16.1-02-15, subsection ~~64~~ of section 41-09-94, subsection 4 of section 41-09-96, subsection ~~87~~ of section 54-09-04, and sections 10-35-33, 54-09-10, and 54-09-11. At the close of each biennium, the secretary of state shall transfer any unobligated balance remaining in the fund exceeding seventy-five thousand dollars to the general fund.

**SECTION 33. AMENDMENT.** Section 54-09-09 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**54-09-09. Computerized central indexing system - Rules.**

1. The secretary of state shall maintain a computerized central indexing system that contains the information filed ~~with the office of the secretary of state or with any of the offices of the recorder in this state~~ pursuant to sections 35-13-02, 35-17-04, 35-20-16, 35-30-02, 35-31-02, 35-34-04, 35-34-06, 41-09-72, ~~57-28-29, 57-38-49, 57-39.2-13, 57-40.2-16, 57-40.3-07.1, 57-43.1-17.4, 57-43.2-16.3, and 57-51-11.~~ The system must connect each recorder's office to the secretary of state's office through the information technology department. The system must allow access to financing statement information by equipment that conforms to requirements determined by the information technology department. The system must have safeguards to allow access to information that is in the system relating to security interests or liens and to prevent unauthorized alteration or deletion of that information and to allow access to other information in the system as prescribed by the secretary of state.
2. Within two working days of receipt of a financing statement, continuation statement, amendment, or termination statement filed electronically pursuant to chapter 41-09 or a statement filed electronically pursuant to section 35-13-02, 35-17-04, 35-20-16, 35-30-02, or 35-31-02, the ~~recorder or secretary of state shall file the information contained in the statement~~ must be filed in the computerized central indexing system. A computer printout of information from the system is prima facie evidence of the existence or nonexistence of the filing of a financing statement or lien. The secretary of state shall ~~prescribe one form~~ provide an electronic means that can be used to perfect a security interest in farm products or gain protection under the central notice system, or both.
3. The secretary of state may adopt rules necessary to implement this section and sections 54-09-10 and 54-09-11.

**SECTION 34. AMENDMENT.** Section 54-09-10 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**54-09-10. Secretary of state to compile lists for crops and livestock - Distribution of lists.**

1. From the computerized central indexing system, the secretary of state or a designee shall produce ~~each month one~~ electronically a list for crops and ~~one~~ list for livestock that each contain the information as filed ~~on the forms~~ pursuant to section 41-09-72. The secretary of state shall also

include on the lists the information filed for crops and livestock pursuant to sections 35-17-04, 35-30-02, and 35-31-02. The lists must be in alphabetical order according to the last name of, or in numerical order according to the social security number of, the person engaged in farming operations. The lists may be prepared in categories according to county, regions as designated by the secretary of state, or on a statewide basis. If requested, the lists must be in printed form. Each list must conspicuously note the effective date of the list.

2. The secretary of state shall distribute ~~monthly~~ by mail or deliver electronically the lists prepared pursuant to subsection 1, ~~at least five business days in advance of the effective date of each of the lists.~~ If requested, the secretary of state shall mail or deliver electronically the lists to any person making a request at a fee as provided in section 54-09-11.
3. Upon a verbal request of any person, the secretary of state, or a designee of the secretary of state, ~~or a recorder~~ shall verbally provide information contained on a list generated through the computerized central indexing system if the collateral is crops or livestock. The requesting party may request electronically a certificate from ~~the secretary of state or the recorder and the secretary of state or the recorder shall~~ the central indexing system to confirm the information given. Direct computer access is equivalent to oral confirmation, and a computer printout constitutes the written confirmation of the secretary of state, if use of this method of confirmation does not cause the central indexing system to lose federal certification. A computer printout from the computerized central indexing system constitutes the certificate of the secretary of state ~~or the recorder~~ as to whether there is on file, on the date and hour stated on the computer printout, a financing statement.

**SECTION 35. AMENDMENT.** Section 54-09-11 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**54-09-11. Fees.**

1. The secretary of state shall establish fees for ~~placing data in the computerized central indexing system; for obtaining computer access to the computerized central indexing system; to the computerized Uniform Commercial Code central filing database; or to the computerized statutory liens database; for receiving printouts; for direct access to all or parts of the central indexing system; for lists sold or licensed under subsection 6 of section 41-09-94; for any other list provided by the secretary of state; for any programming charges specifically incurred to provide information requested by persons which is related to the central indexing system; and for other services provided through the computerized system.~~
2. ~~The~~ A fee may not be required for furnishing information on a verbal request pursuant to subsection 3 of section 54-09-10 ~~is seven dollars,~~ and the fee for furnishing a certificate under subsection 3 of section 54-09-10 ~~is seven~~ fifteen dollars.
3. The secretary of state shall establish the fee for furnishing lists ~~under subsection 1 of section 54-09-10~~ from the central indexing system based on actual costs to produce the lists for distribution.
4. Fees collected by the secretary of state under ~~subsections 1 and 3 and this section,~~ under subsection 64 of section 41-09-94, and subsection 4 of section 41-09-96, and ten dollars from each filing entered into the central indexing system must be deposited in the secretary of state's general services operating fund. Fees collected by the secretary of state under subsection 2 must be deposited in the general fund in the ~~state treasury~~ this section must be used for the programming and maintenance of the central indexing system.

5. ~~The secretary of state may adopt rules regarding what portion of the filing fees and search fees collected by the recorder under section 41-09-06 must be submitted to the secretary of state for deposit into the secretary of state's general operating fund to meet the cost of the provision of services required under sections 54-09-09 and 54-09-10 shall pay ten dollars to the county recorder of the county of residence for the first debtor listed on each statement filed pursuant to section 35-13-02, 35-17-04, 35-20-16, 35-30-02, 35-31-02, or 41-09-72. The payment must be made monthly from the general fund in the state treasury.~~

**SECTION 36. AMENDMENT.** Subsection 5 of section 57-34-10 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

5. Any mortgagee, purchaser, judgment creditor, or lien claimant acquiring any interest in, or lien on, any property situated in the state, prior to the tax commissioner filing in the central indexing system maintained by the secretary of state a notice of the lien provided for in subsection 4, takes free of, or has priority over, the lien. The tax commissioner shall index in the central indexing system the following data:
- a. The name of the taxpayer.
  - b. The name "State of North Dakota" as claimant.
  - c. The date and time the notice of lien was indexed.
  - d. The amount of the lien.
  - e. The internal revenue service taxpayer identification number or social security number of the taxpayer.

The notice of lien is effective as of eight a.m. the next day following the indexing of the notice. The tax commissioner shall index any notice of lien with no payment of fees or costs to the secretary of state.

**SECTION 37. AMENDMENT.** Subsection 4 of section 57-36-09.5 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

4. The commissioner shall index in the central indexing system the following data:
- a. The name of the taxpayer.
  - b. The name "State of North Dakota" as claimant.
  - c. The date and time the notice of lien was indexed.
  - d. The amount of the lien.
  - e. The internal revenue service taxpayer identification number or social security number of the taxpayer.

The notice of lien is effective as of eight a.m. next day following the indexing of the notice. Any notice of lien filed by the commissioner ~~with a recorder~~ may be indexed in the central indexing system without changing its original priority as to property in the county where the lien was filed.

**SECTION 38. AMENDMENT.** Section 57-38-49 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**57-38-49. Preservation of lien.**

Any mortgagee, purchaser, judgment creditor, or lien claimant acquiring any interest in, or lien on, any property situated in the state, prior to the commissioner filing in the central indexing system maintained by the secretary of state a notice of

the lien provided for in section 57-38-48, takes free of, or has priority over, the lien. The commissioner shall index in the central indexing system the following data:

1. The name of the taxpayer.
2. The name "State of North Dakota" as claimant.
3. The date and time the notice of lien was indexed.
4. The amount of the lien.
5. The internal revenue service taxpayer identification number or social security number of the taxpayer.

The notice of lien is effective as of eight a.m. next following the indexing of the notice. Any notice of lien filed by the commissioner ~~with a recorder~~ may be indexed in the central indexing system without changing its original priority as to property in the county where the lien was filed. The commissioner shall index any notice of lien with no payment of fees or costs to the secretary of state.

**SECTION 39. AMENDMENT.** Subsection 4 of section 57-39.2-13 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

4. The commissioner shall index in the central indexing system the following data:
  - a. The name of the taxpayer.
  - b. The name "State of North Dakota" as claimant.
  - c. The date and time the notice of lien was indexed.
  - d. The amount of the lien.
  - e. The internal revenue service taxpayer identification number or social security number of the taxpayer.

The notice of lien is effective as of eight a.m. next following the indexing of the notice. Any notice of lien filed by the commissioner ~~with a recorder~~ may be indexed in the central indexing system without changing its original priority as to property in the county where the lien was filed.

**SECTION 40. AMENDMENT.** Subsection 4 of section 57-40.2-16 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

4. The commissioner shall index in the central indexing system the following data:
  - a. The name of the taxpayer.
  - b. The name "State of North Dakota" as claimant.
  - c. The date and time the notice of lien was indexed.
  - d. The amount of the lien.
  - e. The internal revenue service taxpayer identification number or social security number of the taxpayer.

The notice of lien is effective as of eight a.m. next following the indexing of the notice. Any notice of lien filed by the commissioner ~~with a recorder~~ may be indexed in the central indexing system without changing its original priority as to property in the county where the lien was filed.

**SECTION 41. AMENDMENT.** Subsection 3 of section 57-40.3-07.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

3. The commissioner shall index in the central indexing system the following data:
  - a. The name of the taxpayer.
  - b. The name "State of North Dakota" as claimant.
  - c. The date and time the notice of lien was indexed.
  - d. The amount of the lien.
  - e. The internal revenue service taxpayer identification number or social security number of the taxpayer.

The notice of lien is effective as of eight a.m. next following the indexing of the notice. Any notice of lien filed by the commissioner ~~with a recorder~~ may be indexed in the central indexing system without changing its original priority as to property in the county where the lien was filed. The commissioner is exempt from the payment of fees otherwise provided by law for the indexing or the satisfaction of the lien.

**SECTION 42. AMENDMENT.** Subsection 4 of section 57-43.1-17.4 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

4. The commissioner shall index in the central indexing system the following data:
  - a. The name of the taxpayer.
  - b. The name "State of North Dakota" as claimant.
  - c. The date and time the notice of lien was indexed.
  - d. The amount of the lien.
  - e. The internal revenue service taxpayer identification number or social security number of the taxpayer.

The notice of lien is effective as of eight a.m. next following the indexing of the notice. Any notice of lien filed by the commissioner ~~with a recorder~~ may be indexed in the central indexing system without changing its original priority as to property in the county where the lien was filed.

**SECTION 43. AMENDMENT.** Subsection 4 of section 57-43.2-16.3 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

4. The commissioner shall index in the central indexing system the following data:
  - a. The name of the taxpayer.
  - b. The name "State of North Dakota" as claimant.
  - c. The date and time the notice of lien was indexed.
  - d. The amount of the lien.
  - e. The internal revenue service taxpayer identification number or social security number of the taxpayer.

The notice of lien is effective as of eight a.m. next following the indexing of the notice. Any notice of lien filed by the commissioner ~~with a recorder~~

may be indexed in the central indexing system without changing its original priority as to property in the county where the lien was filed.

**SECTION 44. AMENDMENT.** Subsection 4 of section 57-43.3-22 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

4. The commissioner shall index in the central indexing system the following data:
  - a. The name of the taxpayer.
  - b. The name "State of North Dakota" as claimant.
  - c. The date and time the notice of lien was indexed.
  - d. The amount of the lien.
  - e. The internal revenue service taxpayer identification number or social security number of the taxpayer.

The notice of lien is effective as of eight a.m. next following the indexing of the notice. Any notice of lien filed by the commissioner ~~with a recorder~~ may be indexed in the central indexing system without changing its original priority as to property in the county where the lien was filed.

**SECTION 45. AMENDMENT.** Subsection 2 of section 57-51-11 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

2. Any judgment creditor, or lien claimant acquiring any interest in, or lien on, any property situated in this state, prior to the commissioner filing in the central indexing system maintained by the secretary of state, a notice of the lien provided for in this section, takes free of, or has priority over, the lien. The commissioner shall index in the central indexing system the following data:
  - a. The name of the taxpayer.
  - b. The name "State of North Dakota" as claimant.
  - c. The date and time the notice of lien was indexed.
  - d. The amount of the lien.
  - e. The internal revenue service taxpayer identification number or social security number of the taxpayer.

The notice of lien is effective as of eight a.m. of the first day following the indexing of the notice. A notice of lien filed by the commissioner ~~with a recorder~~ before August 1, 1997, may be indexed in the central indexing system without changing its original priority as to property in the county where the lien was filed.

**SECTION 46. AMENDMENT.** Subsection 4 of section 57-63-10 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

4. The commissioner shall index in the central indexing system the following data:
  - a. The name of the facility.
  - b. The name "State of North Dakota" as claimant.
  - c. The date and time the notice of lien was indexed.
  - d. The amount of the lien.

- e. The internal revenue service taxpayer identification number of the facility or the social security number of the owner, officer, or manager of the facility.

The notice of lien is effective as of eight a.m. the next day following the indexing of the notice. A notice of lien filed by the commissioner ~~with the recorder~~ may be indexed in the central indexing system without changing its original priority as to property in the county where the lien was filed.

**SECTION 47. REPEAL.** Section 57-28-29 of the North Dakota Century Code is repealed.

**SECTION 48. APPLICATION.** During the 2013-15 biennium, the secretary of state shall provide an electronic means for the central indexing system to accept an amendment to a statement filed before July 1, 2014, pursuant to section 35-13-02, 35-17-04, 35-20-16, 35-30-02, 35-31-02, 35-34-04, 41-09-72, 57-38-49, 57-39.2-13, 57-40.2-16, 57-40.3-07.1, 57-43.1-17.4, or 57-43.2-16. Before July 1, 2015, a secured party or lienholder may amend a filing under this section without a fee if the amendment is limited in scope to correcting the name of the debtor as required under section 41-09-135, or adding or correcting the social security or internal revenue service taxpayer identification number of the debtor, or both.

**SECTION 49. SECRETARY OF STATE REPORT TO LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY.** The secretary of state shall report to the sixty-fourth legislative assembly regarding the change in filing fees provided under this Act, including a comparison of the revenue collected under the new fee system versus the revenues collected under the previous fee system.

**SECTION 50. CONTINGENT EFFECTIVE DATE.** Sections 1 through 27 and sections 29 through 47 of this Act become effective August 1, 2015, or earlier if the secretary of state makes a report to the legislative management and to the information technology committee certifying that the information technology components of the electronic filing system are ready for implementation of those provisions of this Act, in which case those sections become effective ninety days following the completion of the certificate requirement."

Renumber accordingly

HB 1136 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

#### **REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE**

**HCR 3006, as engrossed:** Your conference committee (Sens. Berry, Armstrong, Nelson and Reps. Maragos, Karls, Hanson) recommends that the **HOUSE ACCEDE** to the Senate amendments as printed on HJ page 1340 and place HCR 3006 on the Seventh order.

Engrossed HCR 3006 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

#### **REPORT OF CONFERENCE COMMITTEE**

**SB 2072:** Your conference committee (Sens. Miller, Larsen, Heckaman and Reps. Headland, Kiefert, Boschee) recommends that the **HOUSE RECEDE** from the House amendments as printed on SJ pages 1086-1087, adopt amendments as follows, and place SB 2072 on the Seventh order:

That the House recede from its amendments as printed on pages 1086 and 1087 of the Senate Journal and pages 1171-1173 of the House Journal and that Senate Bill No. 2072 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 1, after "to" insert "create and enact a new subsection to section 4-30-01 and four new sections to chapter 4-30 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to shared animal ownership agreements; to"

Page 1, line 1, after "sections" insert "4-30-36,"

Page 1, line 3, after "regulations" insert "; and to provide for a legislative management study"

Page 1, after line 9, insert:

**"SECTION 2.** A new subsection to section 4-30-01 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

"Shared animal ownership agreement" means any contractual arrangement under which an individual:

- a. Acquires an ownership interest in a milk-producing animal;
- b. Agrees to pay another for, reimburse another for, or otherwise accept financial responsibility for the care and boarding of the milk-producing animal at the dairy farm; and
- c. Is entitled to receive a proportionate share of the animal's raw milk production as a condition of the contractual arrangement.

**SECTION 3. AMENDMENT.** Section 4-30-36 of the North Dakota Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

**4-30-36. Standards for grade A milk and milk products - Adoption of amendments.**

1. Only grade A milk may be sold as fluid beverage for human consumption. The minimum standards for milk and milk products designated as grade A are the same as the minimum requirements of the Pasteurized Milk Ordinance which includes provisions from the "Grade A Condensed and Dry Milk Products and Condensed and Dry Whey - Supplement 1 to the Grade A PMO". The commissioner may adopt ~~as regulations~~ other standards in the interest of public safety, wholesomeness of product, consumer interest, sanitation, good supply, salability, and promotion of grade A milk and milk products.
2. It is not a violation of this section to transfer or obtain raw milk under a shared animal ownership agreement. However, a person may not resell raw milk or raw milk products obtained under a shared animal ownership agreement."

Page 2, after line 10, insert:

**"SECTION 7.** A new section to chapter 4-30 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

**Shared animal ownership agreement - Notification of commissioner.**

1. If during a calendar year the owner of a dairy farm licensed to sell grade A or manufacturing grade milk in this state enters or continues to participate in a shared animal ownership agreement, the owner shall notify the agriculture commissioner.
2. The notification must be in writing and must be submitted within thirty days after the conclusion of each calendar year.

**SECTION 8.** A new section to chapter 4-30 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

**Shared animal ownership agreement - Requirements.**

A person that transfers an animal's raw milk production in accordance with a shared animal ownership agreement does not violate this chapter provided:

1. The milk is transferred at the dairy farm where the milk-producing animal is located or delivered to another location in accordance with a shared animal ownership agreement;

2. The individual receiving the milk has entered a shared animal ownership agreement with the owner of the dairy farm and is receiving the milk on the individual's own behalf or on behalf of another who has entered a shared animal ownership agreement with the owner of the dairy farm;
3. The shared animal ownership agreement contains a prominent statement warning that:
  - a. The milk is not pasteurized;
  - b. Potential pathogens may be present in the milk; and
  - c. There are potential health concerns associated with the consumption of raw milk or raw milk products.
4. Annually, the owner of the dairy farm provides to individuals who have entered shared animal ownership agreements with the owner:
  - a. The standards used to ensure the health of the milk-producing animals that are part of the shared animal ownership agreement;
  - b. The standards used to ensure the production of milk;
  - c. The results of any tests performed on the milk-producing animals, together with an explanation of the test results; and
  - d. The results of any tests performed on the milk from the milk-producing animals, together with an explanation of the test results.

**SECTION 9.** A new section to chapter 4-30 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

**Shared animal ownership agreement - Prohibition.**

A person may not publish any statement that asserts or implies the approval or endorsement by the commissioner of shared animal ownership agreements and the acquisition of raw milk under such agreements.

**SECTION 10.** A new section to chapter 4-30 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

**Commissioner - Rulemaking authority - Limitation.**

Notwithstanding chapter 28-32, the commissioner may not adopt any rule that restricts, limits, or imposes additional requirements on any individual transferring or obtaining raw milk in accordance with the terms of a shared animal ownership agreement.

**SECTION 11. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY - RAW MILK.** During the 2013-14 interim, the legislative management shall consider studying the availability of raw or unpasteurized milk, for human consumption, in this state. The study should examine the nature and extent of governmental oversight with respect to the safety of the milk; the health of the animals used to produce the milk; and the conditions under which the product is produced, transferred, or obtained. The legislative management shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislation required to implement the recommendations, to the sixty-fourth legislative assembly."

Renumber accordingly

SB 2072 was placed on the Seventh order of business on the calendar.

The House stood adjourned pursuant to Representative Vigesaa's motion.

**Buell J. Reich, Chief Clerk**

